
Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District Four

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

Vacant 
District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

Jimmy Davis 
District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson
District Seven

Lacey Croegaert 
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING 
Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

Anderson County Historic Courthouse 
101 South Main Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATIONS

a. R2021-024 A resolution to honor and recognize Mr. Wayne Rogers on the occasion of his 101st Birthday.

b. R2021-025 A resolution to proclaim May 22-28, 2021 as National Safe Boating Week.

3. ADJOURNMENT

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Anderson County Historic Courthouse 
101 South Main Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    Hon. John B. Wright, Jr. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES       Not Received 

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS          Agenda Matters only 

5. INTRODUCTION OF NEW LIBRARY DIRECTOR ANNIE SUTTON
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING

a. 2021-026 An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and between
Anderson County, South Carolina and a company known to the county at this time as Old Dominion Freight Line,
Inc. with respect to certain economic development property in the county, whereby such property will be subject
to certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source credits; and other matters
related thereto. (Project Greenlight) (PUBLIC HEARING — THREE (3) MINUTE TIME LIMIT)

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 



 

Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, May 18, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING 
 

a. 2021-030 An Ordinance to adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County 
budgets for county ordinary purposes and for other county purposes for which the county may levy a tax other 
than for Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy of taxes on all taxable personal and 
real estate properties in Anderson County for such county ordinary purposes, including sufficient tax to pay the 
principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness of Anderson County maturing during said fiscal year; to 
adopt the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and 
ending June 30, 2022, and to make appropriations for such Anderson County budgets, for Tri-County Technical 
College; to provide for the levy of taxes on all personal and real properties in Anderson county on which school 
taxes may be levied for such Tri-County Technical College purposes; to provide for the levy, assessment and 
collection of certain other taxes and fees; to provide for the expenditure of said taxes and other revenues coming 
to the county during said fiscal year; and to provide for other matters relating to Anderson County.  
(PUBLIC HEARING — THREE (3) MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Hon. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
b. 2021-031 An Ordinance to amend Section 38-353 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South 

Carolina so as to amend Section 38-353(a) and add a new Section 38-353(d) regarding private road standards; 
and other matters related thereto. 

Hon. Jimmy Davis (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: None 
 
9. RESOLUTIONS: None 
  
10. BID APPROVAL:  
 

a. ACTC #120 Resurfacing Project 
 Mr. Robert Carroll (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
11. REPORT FROM FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD FRIDAY, MAY 14, 2021 
 

3. Bid #21-050 ACTC #120 Resurfacing Project 
4. Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
5. Transfers 
6. Continued Discussion of FY 21-22 Operating & Capital Budget 

Hon. Brett Sanders (allotted 10 minutes) 
 
 

12. APPOINTMENTS: None 
 
13. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: None 
 
14. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

a. Building and Codes Report 
b. Special Projects 
c. Paving 
d. Transfers 
e. Sheriff’s Report 

 
15. CITIZENS COMMENTS 



 

Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, May 18, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

 
16. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 
modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, 
service or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as 
soon as possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For 
assistance please contact the Clerk to Council at 864.260.1036. 
 



RESOLUTION R2021-024 

A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR MR. WAYNE ROGERS UPON THE 

OCCASION OF HIS 101ST BIRTHDAY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  

WHEREAS, Mr. Wayne Rogers was born on April 24, 1920, a premature, three-

pound baby boy, the fifth child born into the Rogers household of the Beaverdam 

community, his father saying to his mother, “Essie, I don’t know if we’ll get to raise 

this one;” and,  

WHEREAS, 101 years later, Mr. Rogers is still celebrating birthdays in a full, 

inspiring life, and although he is perhaps most well-known in the community for his 

service as a public-school principal in Anderson School District One, he has lived a 

life marked by resilience, bravery, self-sacrifice, and generosity, helping his family 

farm survive his father’s death and drought during the Great Depression, and 

enlisting in the US Navy, serving 1939-1945, first on board the USS Prairie in the 

North Atlantic, then on the USS Mindanao in the perilous South Pacific, where 80 

of his fellow sailors perished in an explosion caused by a Japanese suicide 

submarine, though he escaped serious injury; and,  

WHEREAS, upon returning home, Mr. Rogers enrolled at Vanderbilt University, 

then returned home to major in biology at Furman, marry Irene (Dickerson) Rogers, 

and pursue a career in education, later earning a Master of Educational 

Administration degree from Furman and serving, in turn, the Navy Reserves, 

National Guard, and the Army Reserves, from which he retired as a Lt. Colonel and 

began many years doing electrical work overseas on mission trips and service to his 

friends, family, church, and community.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 

wish Mr. Rogers a happy 101st birthday and thank him for his long lifetime of 

service to Anderson County, to the United States, and to countries around the 

world. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day of May, 2021. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

____________________ 

M. Cindy Wilson

County Council District Seven

ATTEST 

____________________ 

Rusty Burns 

County Administrator 

____________________ 

M. Phyllis White
 Interim Clerk to 

Council 



RESOLUTION R2021-025 

A RESOLUTION TO PROCLAIM MAY 22-28, 2021 AS NATIONAL SAFE BOATING 

WEEK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  

Whereas, for nearly 100 million Americans, boating continues to be a popular recreational 

activity. From coast to coast, and everywhere in between, people are taking to the water and 

enjoying time together boating, sailing, paddling and fishing. During National Safe Boating 

Week, the U.S. Coast Guard and its federal, state, and local safe boating partners encourage 

all boaters to explore and enjoy America’s beautiful waters responsibly; and 

Whereas, safe boating begins with preparation. The Coast Guard estimates that human error 

accounts for most boating accidents and that life jackets could prevent nearly 86 percent of 

boating fatalities. Through basic boating safety procedures – carrying lifesaving emergency 

distress and communications equipment, wearing life jackets, attending safe boating courses, 

participating in free boat safety checks, and staying sober when navigating – we can help 

ensure boaters on America’s coastal, inland, and offshore waters stay safe throughout the 

season; and 

Whereas, National Safe Boating Week is observed to bring attention to important life-saving 

tips for recreational boaters so that they can have a safer, more fun experience out on the 

water throughout the year; and 

Whereas, on average, 600 people die each year in boating-related accidents in the U.S.; 79 

percent of these are fatalities caused by drowning; the vast majority of these accidents are 

caused by human error or poor judgment and not by the boat, equipment or environmental 

factors; and a significant number of boaters who lose their lives by drowning each year would 

be alive today had they worn their life jackets. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby supports 

the goals of the Safe Boating Campaign and proclaims May 22-28, 2021 as National Safe 

Boating Week and the start of the year-round effort to promote safe boating, urging all those 

who boat to practice safe boating habits and wear a life jacket at all times while boating. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 18th day of May, 2021. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

____________________ 

Tommy Dunn  

County Council Chairman 

ATTEST: 

____________________ 

Rusty Burns 

County Administrator 

____________________ 

M. Phyllis White 

Interim Clerk to 

Council 



HSB 6648238 v.6

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-026 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY 

AT THIS TIME AS OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, INC. WITH RESPECT TO 

CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, 

WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS 

IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL 

SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 
through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated April 20, 2021 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc., a Virginia (the “Company”) (which was known to the 
County at the time as “Project Greenlight”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation of 
land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible 
personal property to constitute a new facility in the County (collectively, the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $8,650,000.00 in the County and the expected creation of approximately 27 new, full-time 
jobs at the Project, all within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Fee 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by 
the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-
1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  



2 
HSB 6648238 v.6

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs.

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of 
and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the 
same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company and cause a copy of the 
same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be 
in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such minor changes therein 
as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of 
Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 



3 
HSB 6648238 v.6

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______, 2021. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

By:____________________________________ 
M. Phyllis White, Interim Clerk to 
Council  Anderson County, South 
Carolina 

Approved as to form: 

By: 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

First Reading: ___________, 2021 
Second Reading:    , 20__ 
Third Reading: ___________, 20__ 
Public Hearing: ___________, 20__ 



HSB 6648238 v.6

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of _________, 2021_, _________, 
20__, and _________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

___________________________________________ 
M. Phyllis White, Interim Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

Dated: _________, 20__ 



HSB 6648069 v.9 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

Between 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

and 

OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, INC. 

Dated as of __________, 2021 



i 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 2 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 6 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 6 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 7 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 7 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS ..................................................................................................................... 10 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENT .............................................................. 11 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 14 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 17 



ii 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 18 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 18 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 19 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 20 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 20 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 21 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 22 

EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 



 

iii 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. Project Name: Project Greenlight 
Projected Investment: $8,650,000.00 Projected Jobs: 27 
Location (street): TBA Tax Map No.: TBA 
    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: FILOT Act Minimum Investment 

Requirement 
  

 Investment Period: Five (5) years Ordinance No./Date:  
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): Thirty (30) 
 Fixed Millage:  

326.3 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

N/A 
 

 Clawback information: If the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement is not met during the Investment 
Period, the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount 
pursuant to the FILOT Act which is equal to any Deficiency Amount for the period 
through and including the end of the Investment Period. 

2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Agreement for Development of a Joint County Business and Industrial Park (2010 Park), 

dated December 1, 2010, as amended, between Anderson County and Greenville County 
  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: 50%  
 No. of Years Five (5) years; years 1-5. 
    Yearly Increments:  
 Clawback information: If the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement is not met during the Investment 

Period, the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the amount of the 
Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes.  

4. Other information  
 
 

 
 



FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of ______________, 2021 by and between ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the 
“County Council”) as the governing body of the County, and OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, 
INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Virginia (the “Company”). 

RECITALS 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a distribution facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a new facility in the County. 

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on __________, 2021, the County Council has authorized
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 
provision of Special Source Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 



2 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01  Definitions 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

“Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 

“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.  

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc., a Virginia corporation, and any 
surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other 
person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

“Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 

 “County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 



3 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300T or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

 “Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 



4 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase or 
acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. “MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for 
Development of a Joint County Business and Industrial Park (2010 Park), dated December 1, 2010, as 
amended, between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further 
amended or supplemented from time to time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with 
respect to the Project to offer the benefits of the Special Source Credits to the Company hereunder. 

“Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 
property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 



 

5 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

 “State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



6 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 

The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 326.3 mills, which is the
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02 Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of Virginia,
is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, and has 
duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
a commercial enterprise, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the Company may 
deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement within the 
Investment Period. 

[End of Article II] 



7 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

Section 3.01  The Project 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct
and acquire the Project, (ii) meet the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, and (iii) create 
approximately 27 net new, full-time jobs (with benefits) within the Investment Period. The Company 
anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the calendar year ending 
December 31, 2022. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300T 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement within the 
Investment Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 



 

8 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



9 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 326.3 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value to 
determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

10 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to receive, and the 
County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s FILOT Payments for a 
period of five (5) consecutive years in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of that portion of FILOT 
Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the 
Company in the Project during the Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the amount 
due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  

(d) Should the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Fee Agreement shall no 
longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the 
amount of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing 
sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (120th) day following the 
last day of the Investment Period. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 



 

11 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 
 (a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the FILOT 
Act Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate.  In such event, the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount 
pursuant to the FILOT Act which is equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes 
as would result from taxes levied on the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school 
district or school districts, and other political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic 
Development Property were not Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions 
equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates 
would be entitled in such a case, through and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the 
total amount of FILOT payments the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the 
Economic Development Property (after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such 
excess, a  “Deficiency Amount” for the period through and including the end of the Investment Period.  
Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be subject to interest at the 
statutory rate for the late payment of ad valorem taxes and shall be payable to the County on or before the 
second (2nd) January 15 following the last day of the Investment Period. 

 
(b) As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 

County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 



 

12 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT 

Payment with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as 
the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   



13 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

[End of Article IV] 



14 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility or the 
cessation of freight handling operations at the facility for a continuous period of twelve (12) months.  The 
provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, if this Fee 
Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment Period.  Each 
of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated pursuant to 
this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to 
the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 



 

15 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received from or 
payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent 
the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from (i) any breach or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of 
any of its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees during the Exemption Period, (iii) any 
act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, 
contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate during the Exemption Period, or (iv) any violation of environmental laws during the Exemption 
Period with respect to the Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, 
servants, employees or licensees.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless 
from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as 
aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the 
County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel 
acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). Provided, however, 
the foregoing indemnity obligations shall not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) 
the grossly negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or 
employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by the County. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 



 

16 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 



 

17 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



18 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

Section 6.01  Events of Default 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or 

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions,
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 

Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to
collect the amounts due hereunder.  

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee 
Agreement. 



 

19 
HSB 6648069 v.9  

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 
notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



20 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 7.01  Notices 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

If to the Company: 

Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc.  
Attn:  Brandi Cox 
500 Old Dominion Way 
Thomasville, North Carolina  27360 

With a copy to: 

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: Jeremy Cook (jcook@hsblawfirm.com) 
J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com)
One North Main Street
2nd Floor
Greenville, South Carolina  29601

If to the County: 

Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

With a copy to: 

Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

Section 7.02  Binding Effect 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 



21 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 

Section 7.03 Counterparts 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04 Governing Law 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05 Headings 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06 Amendments 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07 Further Assurance 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and 
such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, 
valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the 
maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to 
locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or 
reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and 
the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to 
reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 



22 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 



23 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Chairman and to be attested by 
the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:________________________________________ 
M. Phyllis White, Interim Clerk to 
Council Anderson County, South 
Carolina 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 



24 
HSB 6648069 v.9 

OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, INC. 

By:  
Its:  

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 



A-1
HSB 6648069 v.9 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

[Insert legal description here] 



B-1
HSB 6648069 v.9 

EXHIBIT B 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I __________, the __________ of Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement 
dated as of __________, 20__ between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the 
“Agreement”), as follows: 

(1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 

Name: 
Its: 



C-1
HSB 6648069 v.9 

[EXHIBIT C] 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I __________, the __________ of Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement 
dated as of __________, 2021 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the 
“Agreement”), as follows: 

(1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Credits previously received
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 

(2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 

(3) [Use only if expenditures for personal property will be used to account for Special
Source Credits.]  Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $________ pertains to the investment in 
personal property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project.  The applicable personal property, 
and associated expenditures, are listed below: 

Personal Property Description Investment Amount 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 

Name: 
Its: 



3 
HSB 6648238 v.6

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______, 2021. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

By:____________________________________ 
M. Phyllis White, Interim Clerk to 
Council  Anderson County, South 
Carolina 

Approved as to form: 

By: 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

First Reading: ___________, 2021 
Second Reading:    , 20__ 
Third Reading: ___________, 20__ 
Public Hearing: ___________, 20__ 



1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY COUNCIL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO 2021-030 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF 
ANDERSON COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, 
AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH 
ANDERSON COUNTY BUDGETS FOR COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES 
AND FOR OTHER COUNTY PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE COUNTY MAY 
LEVY A TAX OTHER THAN FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE 
PERSONAL AND REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY FOR 
SUCH COUNTY ORDINARY PURPOSES, INCLUDING SUFFICIENT TAX TO 
PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS 
OF ANDERSON COUNTY MATURING DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; TO 
ADOPT THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS OF ANDERSON 
COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2021, AND ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2022, AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH ANDERSON 
COUNTY BUDGETS, FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE; TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES ON ALL PERSONAL AND REAL 
PROPERTIES IN ANDERSON COUNTY ON WHICH SCHOOL TAXES MAY 
BE LEVIED FOR SUCH TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES; 
TO PROVIDE FOR THE LEVY, ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF 
CERTAIN OTHER TAXES AND FEES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE 
EXPENDITURE OF SAID TAXES AND OTHER REVENUES COMING TO THE 
COUNTY DURING SAID FISCAL YEAR; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO ANDERSON COUNTY.   

BE IT ENACTED by the County Council for Anderson County, South Carolina ("Anderson 
County"), as follows: 

The following operating and capital budgets for Anderson County for the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, are hereby adopted and directed to be implemented by the 
Anderson County Administrator and staff. 

SECTION I-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR COUNTY 

ORDINARY AND OTHER PURPOSES 

Pursuant to Section 4-9-140 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended (the 
"Code"), the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County (the "Anderson County Budgets"), 
for County ordinary purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax 
other than for Tri-County Technical College purposes, as hereinafter set forth, by reference and 
otherwise, are hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 



2 
 

SECTION II-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR COUNTY ORDINARY AND 

OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations for the Anderson County Budgets, herein 
made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, after crediting against such 
appropriations all other revenue anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said fiscal year, not 
designated for any other specific purpose, is hereby directed to be levied upon all taxable property of 
Anderson County upon which the County may levy County ordinary taxes, for County ordinary 
purposes and for other County purposes for which the County may levy a tax, other than for the 
Anderson County Library, Tri-County Technical College purposes, County sewer, Countywide 
Emergency Medical Service, Solid Waste fees, Sewer fees, Civic Center fees, Animal Shelter fees, 
9-1-1 tariffs, and road encroachment fees, all as separately levied in this Ordinance, such tax to fund 
the following amounts or millage, which shall be separately identified, levied, collected, and 
accounted for, as millage, for the purposes shown, as required by subsequent sections of this 
Ordinance (excluding Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes), with the total millage so levied, exclusive of debt service 
millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, not to exceed 83.9 mills. This Ordinance shall 
serve as Anderson County Council’s written certification to the Anderson County Auditor required 
under Section 12-43-285 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 
 

County Ordinary $49,975,400 65.2 Mills 
2007 General Obligation Bonds $760,000 1.0 Mills* 
2020 General Obligation Bonds $600,000 .8 Mills* 
 

*Debt service levies are statutorily set by the Auditor in the fall. This is an estimate for budget 
purposes. 

 

Other taxes and uniform assessments levied by this Ordinance are: 
 

Anderson County Library $5,200,000 6.9 Mills 
Infrastructure Reserve Fund $1,075,000  1.4 Mills 
Capital Fund $2,895,000 3.8 Mills 
Tri-County Technical College $2,361,100  3.1 Mills 
Anderson County Sewer $1,795,000  3.0 Mills 
County EMS  $5,005,000  6.6 Mills 
Solid Waste/Recycling Fees As set in Section XV $75.00 per household 

  $85.81 per commercial 
Sewer Fees As set in Section XVI  
Civic Center Fees As set in Section XXXIV  
Animal Shelter Fees As set in Section XXXV  
911 Tariff As set in Section XXXVII  
Road Encroachment Fees As set in Section XXXVIII  

 

SECTION III-GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES  
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 



3 

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

FUNCTION 

     AMOUNT 

         APPROPRIATED

County Government Administration $31,085,165 
Health and Welfare 3,163,310 
Public Safety 40,953,545 
Public Works 9,361,920 
Culture and Recreation 3,087,785 
Transfer Out 1,288,645 
Contingency 350,000 
Total Appropriations-General Fund $89,290,370 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE

LOCAL SOURCES-4100 

100-101 Property Taxes-RPC Current $43,045,845 
100-102 Property Taxes-RPC Delinquent 2,500,000 
100-103 Property Taxes-Vehicles 6,929,555 
100-105 Property Taxes-Fee-In-Lieu of  Taxes 2,800,000 
000-115 Concessions-Civic Center 6,000 
000-121 Ticket Sales-Civic Center 20,000 
000-140 Rent of Property-Civic Center 210,000 
000-180 Vendor Fees 3,000 
001-105 Baseball-Sports Complex 35,000 
001-106 Soccer-Sports Complex 10,000 
001-107 Softball-Sports Complex 5,000 
001-108 Tennis-Sports Complex 250 
001-115 Concessions-Sports Complex 6,000 
001-125 Rental-Sports Complex 2,500 
003-115 Concessions-Amphitheatre 2,000 
003-140 Rental-Amphitheatre 16,000 
200-110 Fees/Fines-Court Division 165,000 
200-120 Fees/Fines-Family Court 385,000 
200-121 Fees/Fines-Family Court Filing Fees 8,000 
200-125 Fees/Fines-Worthless Check Unit 5,000 
200-135 Fees/Fines-Register of Deeds 2,200,000 
200-140 Fees/Fines-Judge of Probate 450,000 
200-150 Fees/Fines-Master-in-Equity 90,000 
200-155 Fees/Fines-Sheriff 25,000 
200-158 Fees/Fines-Magistrates 800,000 
200-162 Decal Fees 150,000 
200-163 City of Anderson-Forensics 43,000 
200-164 Fees-Coroner 3,000 
200-165 Oconee County Master-in-Equity 36,055 
200-166 Oconee County Drug Lab Match 46,375 
200-168 Medical Examiner Reimbursement 145,000 
200-175 School Crossing Guards 120,000 
200-176 School Resource Officers 2,200,000 



4 
 

300-105 Fees-Animal Shelter 75,000 
300-110 Fees-Cablevision Franchise 1,630,000 
300-120 Fees-Maps and Plats 40,000 
300-125 Fees-Municipal Collection 30,000 
300-132 Fees-Delinquent Tax Posting Fee 20,000 
300-140 Permits-Building 1,400,000 
300-145 Permits-Electrical 300,000 
300-150 Permits-Heating and Air 150,000 
300-155 Permits-Land Use 135,000 
300-157 Fees-Plan Reviews 150,000 
300-158 Fees-Driveway Aprons 130,000 
300-160 Permits-Plumbing 180,000 
300-165 Permits/License-Mobile Homes 55,000 
300-174 Permits-Encroachment 30,000 
300-180 Fees-Re-inspections 5,000 
300-181 Sex Offender Registry 20,000 
300-182 Inspections-Engineering 40,000 
300-190 Miscellaneous 85,000 
400-160 Library Security Reimbursement 105,000 
600-140 Rent of Property 610,000 
600-143 Booth Rental-Farmer’s Market 2,500 
600-144 Farmer’s Market-Event Rental 5,000 
600-145 Broadway Lake Rental 30,000 
900-120 Interest Income 500,000 
3700-000-101 Fund Balance 9,336,430 
 Total Amount of Local 77,526,510 
STATE SOURCES-4200 

400-218 Flood Control 105,000 
400-220 Health and Environmental 5,000 
500-115 Registration and Elections 155,200 
500-125 Local Government Fund 8,162,525 
500-135 Merchants Inventory 273,260 
500-150 Homestead Exemption 2,310,000 
500-160 Salary Assistance 7,875 
 Total Amount of State 11,018,860 
FEDERAL SOURCES-4300 
500-150 Corps of Engineers 95,000 
500-165 DSS Reimbursement 75,000 
 Total Amount of Federal 170,000 
TRANSFER IN-6400 
100-168 Transfer In-Documentary 530,000 
100-175 Transfer In-State ATAX 45,000 
 Total Amount of Transfer In 575,000 
 Total Revenue-General Fund $89,290,370 

No amount of the Local Government Fund revenue shall be used for lobbying purposes. 
 

 



5 

SECTION IV-SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 

There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein:

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

Total Appropriated $95,061,320 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND REVENUE

Special Revenue Funds Other Than Sheriff’s Office 
102 Grants-Local Contributions $3,343,380 

State Grants 707,500 
Transfer In-AFEE 30,000 
Fund Balance 94,225 

103 Museum Store 15,000 
104 American Rescue Plan 39,284,880 
105 Emergency Rental Assistance Grant 4,415,900 
108 Water Recreation-Local Contributions 50,000 

State Grants 100,000 
Federal Grant 500,000 
Transfer In-AFEE 80,000 

114 Public Defender-Local Contributions 240,000 
State Revenue 1,300,000 
Municipal Funding 55,000 
Transfer In-General Fund 564,590 
Fund Balance 31,140 

118 HOME Program-Federal Grant 795,000 
Transfer In-General Fund 125,000 

126 Textile Communities Revitalization-Federal Grant 500,000 
Transfer In-General Fund 300,000 

127 CDBG Rehabilitation-Federal Grant 1,089,150 
Transfer In-General Fund 24,350 

137 Transfer In-“C” Funds 2,000 
139 “C” Funds 3,500,000 

Fund Balance 5,352,000 
Transfer In-Infrastructure 150,000 

140 Tri-County Technical College-Millage 2,361,100 
Delinquent Taxes 85,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 
Merchants Inventory 12,000 
Homestead Exemption 129,360 
Fund Balance 342,540 

142 Airport 2,080,705 
143 Anderson County Library-Millage 5,200,000 

Delinquent Taxes 195,000 



6 
 

 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 
 Homestead Exemption 248,000 
 Fund Balance (122,710) 
145 Re-Entry Navigator Grant-Local Contributions 76,200 
150 Title IV-D/Family Court-Incentive Payments 513,170 
152 DSS Incentive Payments 10,000 
 Fund Balance 65,000 
156 Victim Bill of Rights 149,615 
 Transfer In-General Fund 130,400 
157 Victims of Crime Act Grant 144,400 
 Transfer In-General Fund 38,870 
163 HAZMAT-Local Contributions 50,000 
 Fund Balance 42,975 
165 Federal Emergency Management Agency-Federal Grant 927,410 
 State Grant 74,515 
168 Documentary Stamps 4,000,000 
 Fund Balance 530,000 
173 Detention Center Canteen-Concessions 200,000 
 Fund Balance 145,920 
174 E-911 Revenues 1,665,000 
 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 485,645 
 Fund Balance (413,180) 
175 State Accommodation Tax 469,500 
176 Infrastructure-Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve 876,815 
177 County Accommodations Tax 800,000 
 Fund Balance 52,355 
180 PARD/Recreation-State Grants 105,000 
 Transfer In-General Fund 17,500 
 Transfer In-Capital Projects 67,500 
 Fund Balance 2,500 
181 Office of Justice Programs-Federal Grant 242,415 
 Transfer In-General Fund 8,470 
191 Duke Energy-EPD 15,000 
 Fund Balance 49,075 
193 EMS-Millage 5,005,000 
 Delinquent Taxes 185,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 290,000 
 Local Contributions 660,000 
 State Grant 16,680 
 Homestead Exemption 235,000 
 Fund Balance 38,090 
194 Animal Shelter Donations 375,000 
 Fund Balance 75,000 
195 Sheriff Forfeiture Fund 400,000 
 Fund Balance 100,000 
196 Infrastructure Reserve Fund-Millage 1,075,000 



7 

Delinquent Taxes 40,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 58,000 
Homestead Exemption 50,000 
Fund Balance 1,077,970 

198 Sheriff Forfeiture Non-Drug Fund 30,000 
Fund Balance 170,000 
Total Special Revenue Fund Revenue $95,061,320 

SECTION V-DEBT SERVICE AND OTHER FINANCING APPROPRIATIONS AND 

REVENUES 

There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS 

BOND APPROPRIATED 
2008 General Obligation Bond $845,880 
2020 General Obligation Bond 671,050 

Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Appropriated $1,516,930 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property taxes $1,409,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 79,000 
Merchants Inventory 66,000 
Homestead Exemption 64,000 
Fund Balance  (101,070) 
Total General Obligation Bond Debt Service Revenue $1,516,930 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE APPROPRIATIONS

BOND APPROPRIATED 
Special Source Revenue Bonds $864,790 
Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Appropriated $864,790 

REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE REVENUE

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Transfer In-Economic Development Fund $864,790 
Total Revenue Bond Debt Service Revenue $864,790 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT APPROPRIATIONS 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT AMOUNT 
Hidden Brooks $7,975 
Knight’s Bridge 5,840 
Ashwood Subdivision 10,890 
Sharen Ridge 9,655 



8 
 

The Farm 5,595 
Total Special Tax District Appropriations $39,955 

 

SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUE 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Special Tax District Fees $39,955 
Total Special Tax District Revenue $39,955 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Equipment Lease Purchase  
Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 
Total Lease Purchase Financings Annual Appropriations $2,313,605 

LEASE PURCHASE FINANCINGS REVENUE 

SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Transfer In-General Fund $79,465 
Transfer In-E-911 167,175 
Transfer In-Infrastructure Reserve Fund 705,970 
Transfer In-Capital 1,360,995 
Total Lease Purchase Financings Revenue $2,313,605 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Appropriations $4,735,280 
Total Debt Service and Other Financings Revenue $4,735,280 

 

To the extent that any monies remain in any debt service funds of the County, upon complete 
satisfaction of the debt for which such funds were collected, the County Administrator may transfer 
all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 
County debt service fund which has been lawfully created by Anderson County Council to pay 
debt service on any lawful debt obligation of the County. Further, to the extent that any monies 
remain in the capital project accounts of the County, upon complete satisfaction of the stated 
purposes for which such funds were initially authorized, the County Administrator may transfer 
all such excess and otherwise unused funds to, and utilize such funds for any other Anderson 
County activity or purpose which has been duly authorized by Anderson County Council and for 
which debt funds of the County may be lawfully used. 
 

SECTION VI-CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 

FUND ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
312 Green Pond Landing Event Center $800,000 
317 TTI Building 1,000,000 
319 2020 General Obligation Bond 7,168,185 
320 2020 Lease-Software 1,315,410 
346 2018 SSRB 8,000,000 
360 Capital Reserve Fund 11,542,460 
368 Economic Development 2,879,750 
Total Capital Funds Appropriations $32,705,805 



9 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS REVENUES 
FUND SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
312 Green Pond-State Grant $600,000 
 Transfer In-Accommodation Fee 200,000 
317 TTI Building-State Grant 415,280 
 Federal Grant 500,000 
 Transfer In-Economic Development 84,720 
319 2020 General Obligation Bond 6,600,000 
 Transfer In-Infrastructure 568,185 
320 2020 Lease-Software-Fund Balance 1,315,410 
346 Special Source Revenue Bond-Fund Balance 8,000,000 
360 Capital Reserve Fund-Property Taxes 2,895,000 
 Delinquent Property Taxes 105,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 168,075 
 Local Contributions 30,000 
 Homestead Exemption 136,000 
 Sale of Capital 100,000 
 Insurance Proceeds 65,000 
 State Grant 1,450,000 
 Transfer In-2020 Lease-Software 829,765 
 Transfer In-Economic Development 2,092,120 
 Fund Balance 3,671,500 
368 Economic Development-Property Taxes 975,000 
 Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 2,600,000 
 Fund Balance (695,250) 
Total Capital Funds Revenue $32,705,805 

 

SECTION VII-ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein; provided, however that to the extent, only, that 
revenues for Enterprise Fund activities exceed the revenue projections shown below, the 
Appropriations shown for Enterprise Funds herein may be adjusted by the Administrator to match the 
increased revenues, subject to the requirements of Section XXVII, hereof. Provided, further, that the 
Administrator is authorized to write off, discharge, or otherwise adjust uncollectible and otherwise 
unenforceable debt owed to the enterprise funds of the county, utilizing the same standards used by 
the Anderson County Treasurer to adjust nulla bona debt of the County. 

 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Sewer $10,711,155 
Stormwater 762,760 
Solid Waste/Recycling 10,476,535 
Total Enterprise Funds Appropriations $21,950,450 

 



10 
 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS REVENUES 
REVENUES AMOUNT 
Sewer Property Taxes, State Revenue, Fees & Interest $10,387,095 
Sewer-Federal Grant 500,000 
Sewer-Fund Balance (175,940) 
Stormwater-Fees 145,315 
Stormwater-Transfer In from Sewer 617,445 
Solid Waste/Recycling 8,245,215 
Solid Waste/Recycling State Grant 1,809,325 
Solid Waste Fund Balance 421,995 
Total Enterprise Funds Revenues $21,950,450 

 
SECTION VIII-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

LIBRARY PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $5,200,000 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $195,000, fee-in-lieu of taxes totaling approximately 
$300,000, homestead exemption totaling approximately $248,000 and increase in fund balance 
totaling approximately $122,710), for the Anderson County Library budgets, herein made, for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, is hereby directed to be levied on all 
personal and real property in Anderson County, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County 
tax bills.  To the extent such levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such 
revenues shall be placed and maintained in the Anderson County Library fund balance. Any funds in 
the Anderson County Library fund balance at any point in time in excess of those required for the 
Anderson County Library budgets herein made, may be utilized by the Anderson County Library 
Board of Trustees; provided, however, the expenditures of said surplus funds shall never exceed the 
amount of the most recent approved budget of the Library. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for 
Anderson County Library.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Anderson County Library Fund, with a specific levy and account 
for the library appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION IX-ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND 

REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if 
set forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 
the following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the 
anticipated revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Anderson County Library Fund $5,820,290 
Total Anderson County Library Fund 

Appropriations 

$5,820,290 

 

 

 



11 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property Taxes $5,200,000 
Delinquent Taxes 195,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 300,000 
Homestead Exemption 248,000 
Fund Balance (122,710) 
Total Anderson County Library Fund Revenue $5,820,290 

 

The Anderson County Auditor is hereby directed to levy as separately identified County ordinary 
millage and the Anderson County Treasurer hereby directed to collect, disburse monthly (if funds are 
available), and account for as a separate fund the sums identified herein for the Anderson County 
Library Fund.  
 

SECTION X-ADOPTION OF OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR TRI-

COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 Pursuant to Section 4-9-70 of the Code, the operating and capital budgets of Anderson County 
specifically for Tri-County Technical College as hereinafter set forth, by reference and otherwise, are 
hereby adopted for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XI-LEVYING OF A SUFFICIENT TAX FOR TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL 

COLLEGE PURPOSES 
 

 A tax of sufficient millage to fund the appropriations in the amount of $2,361,100 (excluding 
delinquent taxes totaling approximately $85,000, fee-in-lieu of payments totaling approximately 
$158,400, merchants inventory payments totaling $12,000, homestead exemption payments totaling 
$129,360, and usage of fund balance totaling approximately $342,540) for the Tri-County Technical 
College Budgets, herein made, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, 
is hereby directed to be levied on all personal and real property in Anderson County on which school 
taxes may be levied, and shall be identified as such on Anderson County tax bills. To the extent such 
levy results in excess revenues, above those stated above, all such revenues shall be placed and 
maintained in the Tri-County Technical College fund balance. There shall be credited against said 
appropriations all other revenues anticipated to accrue to Anderson County during said year for Tri-
County Technical College.  All such taxes and other revenues shall be levied, collected, deposited, 
disbursed and accounted for in the Tri-County Technical College Fund, with a specific levy and 
account for the special education appropriation category listed herein.   
 

SECTION XII. TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE FUND APPROPRIATIONS 

AND REVENUES 
 

 There is hereby appropriated, with the detail and the provisos as so stated in the Anderson 
County Budget Book, hereby incorporated by reference as a part of this Ordinance as fully as if set 
forth verbatim herein, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022, the 
following sums of money in the amounts and for the purposes set forth as follows, with the anticipated 
revenues to be applied thereto as reflected herein: 
 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE APPROPRIATIONS 

ACTIVITY APPROPRIATED 
Tri-County Technical College $3,088,400 
Total Tri-County Technical College Appropriations $3,088,400 



12 
 

TRI-COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE REVENUES 
SOURCE OF REVENUE AMOUNT 
Property Taxes $2,361,100 
Delinquent Taxes 85,000 
Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes 158,400 
Merchants Inventory 12,000 
Homestead Exemption 129,360 
Fund Balance 342,540 
Total Tri-County Technical College Revenues $3,088,400 

 
SECTION XIII-TAX FOR ANDERSON COUNTY SEWER 
 
 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of three (3) mills on all county ordinary taxable and 
real property in all unincorporated areas of Anderson County, pursuant to Anderson County 
Ordinance Number 164 of 1986, in order to provide sewer service in the County. 

 

SECTION XIV. LEVYING OF A TAX FOR COUNTYWIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICES 
 
 There is hereby directed to be levied a tax of six and six-tenths mills (6.6 mills) to provide 
such emergency medical services in the County; to be subject to and dependent upon the approval 
by County Council, prior to the levy of County taxes, of: the creation and organization of an 
oversight and governance board for County emergency medical services not addressed elsewhere; 
bylaws and agreements and other organizational documents for such board; applicable minimum 
standards for County providers of emergency medical services; oversight rules and agreements for 
County providers of emergency medical services; approval by County Council of funding for such 
emergency medical services including any required levy of County taxes; and a plan and procedure 
for the distribution of such levied funds to the County providers of emergency medical services on 
a fair and equitable basis.   
SECTION XV-SOLID WASTE/RECYCLING FEES 

 There shall be a uniform $75.00 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed 
upon the owner of record of each residence in the County, including all single and multi-family 
homes, mobile homes, and all lease and rental properties, and a uniform Commercial $85.81 Solid 
Waste/Recycling Fee annually imposed upon every business, excepting industries, located in a 
municipality in the County, and to be collected by such municipality not less frequently than 
annually and remitted to the County within thirty (30) days from the deadline imposed by the 
municipality for such collections. Together, these fees, plus the Starr C&D Landfill usage fee of 
$28/ton and revenues received from the sale of recycled materials, interest income, state grant and 
tire revenue are currently estimated to produce approximately $10,054,540 for this fiscal year, and 
constitute the total anticipated fiscal year 2021-2022 revenues of the Solid Waste and Recycling 
Department. 
 The residential Solid Waste and Recycling Fees shall be levied as a uniform assessment by 
the Anderson County Auditor and placed upon the annual real estate tax notice and collected by 
the Anderson County Treasurer, pursuant to state law. The fiscal officers of the County shall have 
the authority to nulla bona or abate these fees to the same extent and under the same conditions as 
they do for a comparable tax.   



13 
 

 Further, there shall be imposed a late fee and supplemental processing charge of $6.00, for 
all Solid Waste/Recycling Fees not timely remitted to the County Treasurer by March 16 of the 
year when due. For all past due accounts in excess of one year, the County shall impose an 
additional annual penalty of $12.00. The County shall pursue all legal remedies available to it to 
recover past due amounts, and shall hold the property owner responsible for all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorney fees, as a part of such collection efforts and as a part of the fees 
imposed by County Council pursuant to state law, in order that lawful tax-paying citizens not be 
forced to subsidize those taxpayers who do not pay this lawful fee in a timely manner. Failure by 
a municipality to collect the uniform Commercial Solid Waste/Recycling Fee or to remit such 
collected fees to the County in accordance with this section may result in the County terminating 
solid waste disposal privileges for such municipality until all such collections and/or remittances 
are made current. 
 All proceeds collected from these fees shall be accounted for in a separate fund to be used 
solely to account for solid waste operations in the County, including but not limited to, the 
collection, disposal, transfer, and recycling of solid waste, including, without limitation, the 
purchase or construction of machinery, equipment, and facilities for such operations, as well as the 
administrative expenses incurred in the operation of the Anderson County Solid Waste and 
Recycling Department and collection of the annual solid waste/recycling fee. The County is 
authorized to issue appropriate legal obligations, including bonds, as appropriately authorized by 
normal County processes to pay for all of the foregoing costs, utilizing the proceeds from these 
fees to pay for such costs, including, without limitations, to pay the debt service for such bond 
obligations. The fees addressed in this section may be set or changed by simple vote of County 
Council, and will be adjusted by the County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 
of the County accordingly to reflect these changes by County Council. The provisions of this 
Section shall be codified in a separate ordinance of the County pertaining to Solid Waste/Recycling 
Fees, which shall include provisions for enforcement, including civil and criminal penalties for 
non-payment. 
 Because empirical evidence indicates that senior citizens generate less Solid Waste, by 
consuming less, than younger residents, the Anderson County Auditor shall only levy and collect 
a $40 Residential Solid Waste/Recycling Fee for every household which qualifies for and is 
granted the State Homestead Exemption. 
 
SECTION XVI-SEWER FEES 
 
 The County is party to multiple agreements with the City of Anderson, South Carolina (the 
"City"), which have been in effect for many years and are of indefinite duration.  Those agreements 
require the County to pay a pro rata share of the cost of certain upgrades to the City's sewer system, 
based on the volume of discharge and the nature of the discharge.  Because the County does not set 
the amount of such costs and because the costs are based on actual use by customers using the system, 
the only equitable method to use for paying the cost of increase charged by the City, pursuant to 
contractual agreements of long standing, is to increase the County sewer use charges affected, by the 
respective percentage or amount of increase charged by the City, i.e., to treat the amount charged by 
the City as a "pass-through" charge to the system users. In addition, the County has certain debt 
instruments in effect, with the South Carolina State Revolving Fund and others, which require the 
County to set sewer user charges in such an amount as will generate sufficient funds to pay all debt 
service on such debt instruments. The County Administrator and the Public Works Division Director 



14 
 

may effect such “pass-through” charges by insuring that amounts charged by the City are correct and 
then passing those charges along, pro rata, to the users of the County sewer system impacted by the 
City charges, in the form of adjusted sewer use charges, based on the same cost increase factors 
utilized by the City, and may otherwise adjust such sewer use charges as required to adequately meet 
all debt service requirements of sewer system debt instruments and obligations duly authorized by 
County Council. 
 
SECTION XVII-STORMWATER REQUIREMENTS AND PERSONNEL 
 
 Federal and state law mandates the management of stormwater runoff by Anderson County. 
Accordingly, certain Public Works employees have been assigned to the management of Anderson 
County’s Stormwater Runoff management program. Anderson County Council may utilize funds 
from the Sewer Fund for the Stormwater Runoff management program, to the extent such funds are 
available and sufficient for that purpose and exceed stormwater fees collected for that purpose, rather 
than impose additional federally and state mandate-created fees for such purposes. 
 
SECTION XIII-CREATION AND APPROPRIATION OF PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 

FUND 
 

 There has heretofore been established, and shall be maintained as a separate budgetary and 
operational fund of the County, the Anderson County Public Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”).  The 
County shall deposit into such Fund those revenues of the County derived from fee-in-lieu-of-tax 
(“FILOT”) payments from the several joint county industrial and business parks of the County 
(“multi-county parks” or “MCIPs”), which are designated to be so deposited by this Ordinance or 
other ordinances of Anderson County, including, without limitation, Ordinance #2004-041, as 
amended from time to time (“Ordinance #2004-041”).  Moneys deposited into the Fund shall be 
utilized for the costs of infrastructure serving economic development purposes in Anderson County 
(“Infrastructure”) in accordance with the provisions of 4-1-170, et seq., Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended, and as directed by Anderson County Administrator. Such expenditures 
are hereby authorized by Anderson County Council.  Deposits into such Fund shall include, without 
limitation, those revenues from the Anderson County-Greenville County multi-county park which are 
allocated to that purpose by Ordinance #2004-041, (exclusive of such revenues as are being utilized 
for separate special source revenue bonds issued to fund Infrastructure).  Moreover, Anderson County 
Council affirms that distribution of the FILOT revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to 
the multi-county park agreements with Clarendon County and with Abbeville/McCormick Counties 
for park premises under those two agreements which are located in Anderson County shall be 
distributed in the same manner and pursuant to the same allocation methodology as set forth in 
Ordinance #2004-041.  All monies and revenues received by Anderson County pursuant to Ordinance 
#2004-041 and this Section shall be accumulated in, accounted for, and distributed from such Fund 
as provided in such Ordinance and in this Section. Expenditures may be made from such Fund to pay 
the cost of such Infrastructure directly or to make debt service payments on bonds or notes payable 
issued by the County to fund such Infrastructure. 
 There is hereby created a Capital Renewal an Replacement Fund that is to be funded in 
accordance with the wishes of Anderson County Council. 
 

SECTION XIX-SPECIAL TAX DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 The County Finance Department shall receive and account for those revenues of the County 



15 
 

levied and collected for the special tax districts of the county, as authorized, required, and levied by 
the County ordinances creating such special tax districts. The County Finance Department will 
disburse moneys from such funds in accordance with the County ordinances creating the special tax 
districts, including, without limitation, for reimbursements of the County Public Works Division in 
accordance with such ordinances. Such monies are hereby appropriated for those purposes. 
 

SECTION XX-FUNDING OF COUNTY ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 All dependent boards, agencies, commissions, and organizations of the County, funded by 
these budgets, except for County Rescue Squads shall be disbursed funds on a quarterly basis upon 
a letter of request to the County Administrator any time after the beginning of the first month of 
the quarter.  A brief report shall be submitted along with the letter of request, detailing how County 
funds were expended in the previous quarter. An audit report shall be presented to the County 
Administrator within six months following the end of the respective fiscal year for each 
organization addressed by this Section following receipt of request by the County Administrator.  
SECTION XXI-SETTING OF A MILLAGE RATE 
 
 The Anderson County Council, working in cooperation with the Anderson County Auditor 
and Treasurer and in accordance with the laws and Constitution of the State of South Carolina, shall 
calculate and fix the amount of the millage necessary, not to exceed 83.9 mills total, exclusive of debt 
service millage to be set by the Anderson County Auditor, as set forth herein, to support the 
appropriations herein made, with the exception of those appropriations and portions thereof supported 
by revenues other than property taxes, and shall so advise the Auditor and Treasurer of Anderson 
County who shall levy and collect said millage, respectively, as hereby directed by the County 
Council, in addition to any millage (for debt service or otherwise) for which the statutory authority to 
determine and levy is granted to the Anderson County Auditor and the authority to collect is given to 
the Anderson County Treasurer. All such levies of taxes authorized herein by Anderson County 
Council for County of Anderson purposes shall be set forth, stated, and mailed to the taxpayers of 
Anderson County on a tax notice showing such levies separate and independent of levies of taxes by 
any other legal entity or political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, whether on a two-sided 
tax notice or a multi-page tax notice or any other form of tax notice accomplishing the purpose set 
forth in this paragraph. Anderson County Council will provide forms for such tax notices and no funds 
appropriated by this budget ordinance are authorized for the procurement or preparation of any other 
form of tax notice. 
 

SECTION XXII-COMPLIANCE WITH COUNTY CODE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 All funds for County ordinary purchases and procurements shall be obligated in accordance 
with the County Code through the County Central Purchasing Department and will be disbursed by 
the Finance Department so as to provide for necessary auditing, unless specifically exempted by 
County Council in public session.   
 All State and Federal Grants will be administered, coordinated, and accounted for by the 
Anderson County Finance Department.   
 Use of funds appropriated by County Council district or otherwise, to reimburse members of 
County Council for reimbursable expenses (that is, for lodging, travel, registration fees, training, 
meals, and telephone usage) incurred in the discharge of their official duties shall be in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of the County Code. 
 
 



16 

SECTION XXIII-DEPOSITS 

All service charges, reimbursements, fees, fines, other funds received by county departments 
shall be deposited with the County Treasurer as soon as possible after collection; but in no case shall 
the time lapse between collection and deposit with the Treasurer exceed thirty (30) days.  The 
Treasurer is authorized and directed to deposit all funds received into the appropriate interest-bearing 
accounts, and any surplus funds and all accumulative interest shall be deposited into the General Fund 
of Anderson County.   

SECTION XXIV-SURPLUS FUNDS 

Except as otherwise noted herein, any surplus in the General Fund of the County or any 
moneys accruing therefrom shall be used as a contingency fund and shall be spent as authorized and 
directed by the Anderson County Council during the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance, only. 
At the end of such fiscal year those funds shall be accounted for as addressed in the next succeeding 
Section.  Any surplus in other funds of the County or any monies accruing therefrom shall be retained 
and accounted for in such other fund or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund 
balances in such funds. 

SECTION XXV-END OF FISCAL YEAR ACCOUNTING 

All appropriations made by this Ordinance for which monies have not been obligated or 
encumbered by the end of June 30, 2022, shall lapse and expire at that time.  All appropriations made 
by this Ordinance for which the funding monies have been obligated or encumbered by June 30, 2022 
shall remain on the books of Anderson County at June 30, 2022 for matching of the applicable 
expenditure for year-end accrual purposes. Once the ledgers are closed for year-end accrual purposes, 
the unused encumbrance amount will be removed from the encumbrance system. Unobligated 
General Fund budgetary appropriations and monies received by County departments and existing 
without obligation at the close of the fiscal year addressed by this Ordinance shall revert to the General 
Fund of Anderson County to be accounted for as fund balance; no existing appropriation or actual 
revenues on hand at the end of the fiscal year may be expended by any department during the 
succeeding fiscal year without new appropriation by County Council.  Any surplus in other funds of 
the County or any moneys accruing therefrom shall be retained and accounted for in such other fund 
or funds and shall be carried forward from year to year as fund balances in such funds.  

SECTION XXVI-TRANSFERRING OF FUNDS 

The Administrator may approve changes in a department budget from one line item to 
another in an amount up to and including $10,000 at any one time; provided, however, the total 
department budget shall not increase, no new positions may be created, or capital expenses, may 
be accomplished by such a transfer without County Council approval. No transfer for any one type 
of good or services may be subdivided, split or “stacked” for purposes of evading the requirements 
of this section.  

Aggregate transfers within the fiscal year within a department which exceed $20,000 shall 
require County Council approval thereafter. All transfers shall be included in the “Administrator’s 
Report” section of the County Council agenda for Council’s review. 



17 

SECTION XXVII-DISBURSEMENTS 

The County Administrator, based on financial conditions and cash-flow considerations, shall 
determine the proper rate of disbursement of the above-enumerated appropriations during the fiscal 
year. Transfers from fund to fund in order to properly account for and manage County funds and 
appropriations in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards continue to be explicitly 
approved notwithstanding any other language of this Ordinance, subject always to the reporting 
requirements of this Ordinance. All out of state travel for official County government business shall 
be approved in advance by the County Administrator to include any lodging, registration fees or meals 
associated with the trip. The County Administrator and the County Treasurer are hereby granted 
authority to enter into agreements with the Anderson County Board of Education and the School 
Districts of Anderson County, consistent with this Ordinance, to make accelerated disbursements of 
Anderson County school tax receipts to the School Districts of Anderson County and to the Anderson 
County Board of Education.   

SECTION XXVIII-PAUPER BURIALS 

Pauper burials shall be funded in the budget of the Coroner (5131) at the rate established by 
sealed bid. Documentation for each such burial will be maintained at the Coroner’s Office and, as 
further, the Coroner is hereby authorized to arrange for the disposition of deceased indigent persons 
in accordance with state law including, but not limited to, Title 32, Chapter 8 of the South Carolina 
Code of Laws (1976, as amended). 

SECTION XXIX-RETIREMENT OF AUTOMOTIVE  AND HEAVY EQUIPMENT 

Unless otherwise directed by County Council, automotive and heavy equipment will be 
retired from service by any department receiving replacement equipment on a one for one basis as the 
replacement equipment is received.  Retired equipment will be appropriately evaluated for 
reassignment or disposition by the Public Works Division Director and the County Administrator for 
those departments under the director of the County Administrator and the Sheriff for those vehicles 
used by those departments reporting to this elected official. 

SECTION XXX-TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES 

As permitted by Article X, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 
1895, as amended and Section 11-27-40, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, County 
Council is hereby empowered to authorize the issuance of tax anticipation notes in the aggregate 
principal amount of not exceeding $10,000,000 (the "TANS") in anticipation of the collection of taxes 
imposed and levied by this Ordinance.  The TANS may be issued at any time or from time to time 
during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022; shall be issued pursuant to a 
Resolution adopted by County Council; may be issued in bearer form or fully registered upon terms 
and conditions prescribed in such Resolution; shall be issued in the principal amounts, mature and 
bear interest as prescribed in such Resolution; may be sold by negotiated or public sale upon such 
terms and conditions as County Council prescribes in the Resolution. 
SECTION XXXI-CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS 

To the maximum extent authorized by and in accordance with law, and in accordance with 
County procurement policies, all Anderson County offices, including those of elected officials, are 
authorized to adopt and implement uniform procedures, through the County Central Administrative 



18 
 

Services Division, to accept credit card payments for all payments due to the County or processed by 
County offices. 
 

SECTION XXXII-CREDIT CARD POLICY 
 

 All Anderson County credit card charges and purchases made utilizing an Anderson County 
credit card, to include purchasing cards, are to be reported to the Finance Office, and accompanied by 
a detailed receipt and a written report, the format of which is to be designed and determined by the 
County Administrator or his designee.  The written report shall contain sufficient detail to show who 
made the charge, what the charge was for, when the charge was made, where the charge was made, 
and why the charge was incurred.   Charges incurred for or associated with economic development 
projects must still be reported, as addressed above, and accompanied by the receipt and report 
described above, but may be reported by project codename, until such time as the project is publicly 
announced or finally terminated. 
 

SECTION XXXIII-GRANTS AND GRANT MATCHING FUNDS 
 
 The Anderson County Administrator, or his duly authorized representative, is hereby 
authorized to apply for all grants of any nature whatsoever where no County matching funds are 
required, or for those grants for which County matching funds are required when all necessary County 
matching funds have been made available by Anderson County Council through the annual Anderson 
County operating and capital budgets or are available in applicable County enterprise fund balances, 
for County Council authorized programs, institutions, and facilities of Anderson County, and to 
receive and expend such grant funds for the purposes authorized in the respective grant applications. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, County staff shall conduct an analysis identifying any recurring 
expense or monetary obligation for which the County may be responsible in the future where said 
expense or obligation will be payable from funding sources other than the grant being applied for. 
Any grant opportunity which involves such expenses or obligations shall require County Council 
approval prior to the submission of the grant application. 
 No funds appropriated by this Ordinance may be utilized as matching funds for any parks and 
recreation grant, including, without limitation, grants received from the South Carolina Department 
of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism, except for Anderson County Council District Recreation Funds 
appropriated hereby, except as otherwise provided herein. 
  

SECTION XXXIV-APPLICABLE CIVIC CENTER RATES 
 

 Rates as set forth on rate sheets as may be in effect during the fiscal year (subject to 
amendment) shall be applied by the Civic Center of Anderson for all rental contracts entered into 
between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022.  
 
SECTION XXXV-APPLICABLE ANIMAL SHELTER RATES 
 
 Rates as set forth on Animal Shelter rate sheets dated July 1, 2021 shall be applied by the 
Anderson County Animal Shelter for all services rendered between July 1, 2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVI-APPLICABLE JUROR REIMBURSEMENT RATES 
 

 There shall be paid unto the Grand Jurors in Circuit Court the sum of $20 per diem and Petit 
Jurors shall be paid the sum of $12 per diem. There shall be paid unto Jurors in Summary Court the 
sum of $10 per diem Jurors. In addition to the aforesaid sum, jurors shall be reimbursed twenty-five, 
$.25, cents per mile per day from their home to the Anderson County Courthouse for the term for 



19 
 

which they are drawn to serve. These rates shall be effective for all services rendered between July 1, 
2021 and June 30, 2022. 
 

SECTION XXXVII-FUNDING OF E-911 SERVICES 
 

 In order to provide all citizens of Anderson County with the best emergency dispatch services 
available and to fund those services in the most effective, efficient manner possible, the County 
Administrator is hereby directed to utilize and apply the maximum E-9-1-1 tariff funds available by 
current South Carolina law to the County's E-9-1-1 system, in accordance with County procurement 
policies and state law. 
 

SECTION XXXVIII-ROAD ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 
 

The Anderson County Public Works Division is authorized to charge fees for encroachments 
on County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment permits for such encroachments in 
accordance with an encroachment fee schedule prepared, from time to time, by the Anderson County 
Public Works Division, and approved by Anderson County Council by appropriate Council action. 
Such fees for encroachments on Anderson County roads and rights-of-way and for encroachment 
permits for such fees shall be sufficient to fully reimburse the County for all costs of supervising, 
inspecting, and repairing, as necessary, all damage to County roads and rights-of-way caused by such 
encroachments. 
 

SECTION XXXIX-FUND BALANCE POLICY 
 

 Maintenance of an adequate and appropriate fund balance is critical to an overall sound 
fiscal policy and practice of the County. Maintenance of such fund balance not only protects the 
County against emergencies and unexpected contingencies, it actually saves the County significant 
amounts of money, through less reliance on tax anticipation notes and through lower interest rates 
for borrowing money and issuing debt. A fund balance policy is looked upon favorably by rating 
agencies and investors. County Council, therefore, and hereby, establishes a policy that the County 
will maintain a general fund balance of approximately six (6) months of current budget 
expenditures, including operating transfers out, but not less than two (2) months of such 
expenditures. 
 

SECTION XXXX-REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION POLICY 
 

Anderson County is a participant in the Federal Community Development Block Grant 
Program for the purpose of undertaking various important community and economic development 
activities throughout the County. The Community Development Block Grant Program requires a 
reasonable accommodations policy for Section 504 regulations. Anderson County, acting by and 
through the Anderson County Council, desires to comply with all necessary Grant requirements. 
Anderson County, acting by and through the Anderson County Council, is hereby willing to make 
reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental impairments of an otherwise 
qualified participant, applicant or employee, providing it does not cause undue financial or 
administrative burden on the County or cause a fundamental alteration of the County’s program. 
Anderson County Council hereby recognizes that the policy created hereunder includes 
employees, applicants for employment, and the public when the public is involved in County 
activities. The Anderson County Administrator, for and on behalf of the County, is hereby 
authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or appropriate in connection with this 
Policy. 



20 

SECTION XXXXI-SMALL, WOMEN-OWNED AND MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISES 

To promote free competition and equal opportunity, Anderson County is committed, within 
the parameters of the County procurement code, to assisting small, minority-owned and woman-
owned businesses in becoming active vendors with the County. Anderson County encourages and 
invites small, woman, and/or minority owned businesses located inside and outside of the County to 
participate in the County’s procurement process. It is the policy of the County to prohibit 
discrimination against any person or business in pursuit of procurement opportunities on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, disability, political affiliation or gender. 

SECTION XXXXII-SOLICITOR CASE FACILITATOR 

Funding for the temporary Case Facilitator in the Solicitor’s Office is budgeted for an 
additional year and is intended to provide representation for Anderson County in the Magistrates 
Courts of Anderson County. This is a temporary position only. In order for this position to be 
considered in future budget years, the Solicitor’s Office must provide the Administrator with 
quarterly reports indicating the number of new cases referred each quarter, the number of court 
appearances each quarter, and a certification from the Solicitor that this position was only used for 
representation in Magistrate Court on Anderson County cases during the quarter. 
SECTION XXXXIII-SEVERABILITY 

If any clause, phrase, sentence, paragraph, appropriation, or section of this Ordinance shall be 
held invalid for any reason, it shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or the remaining 
clauses, phrases, sentences, paragraphs, appropriations, or sections hereof, which are hereby declared 
separable. 

SECTION XXXXIV-EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall become effective and enforced from and after July 1, 2021. 



21 

ADOPTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st day of June, 2021. 

ATTEST: 

Rusty Burns   Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

  John B. Wright, Jr. District #1 M. Phyllis White
 Interim Clerk to Council 

Vacant, District #2 

Ray Graham, District #3 

Brett Sanders, District #4 

Jimmy Davis, District #6 

M. Cindy Wilson, District #7
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading:  May 4, 2021 

Second Reading: May 18, 2021 

Third Reading:  

Public Hearing:  May 18, 2021 



Ordinance 2021-031 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-353 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA SO AS TO 

AMEND SECTION 38-353(A) AND ADD A NEW SECTION 38-353(D) 

REGARDING PRIVATE ROAD STANDARDS; AND OTHER MATTERS 

RELATED THERETO  

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council has the authority to amend the 
Anderson County Code of Ordinances from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to allow the owners of real 
property located in Anderson County to subdivide property into ten or fewer lots with a 
minimum lot size of 2 acres through the use of a private road; and 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County has determined that a development on 
private roads with ten or fewer lots of a minimum of 2 acres each will assist citizens of 
Anderson County to better utilize their property. 

NOW, THERFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in 
meeting duly assembled that: 

1. Section 38-353 (a) of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South
Carolina is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 38-353. - Access. 
(a) All lots developed in the county from the date of the
adoption of this article must be situated on or have direct access by
right-of-way or easement to an approved county, state maintained
road, or private road built to county standards. Direct access to any
new lot must be in the form of an individual right of way or easement
for each lot, not less than 20 feet in width to a county road or private
road built to county standards. Direct access to a state road must be
in the form of an individual right of way or easement for each lot,
not less than 20 feet in width. All accesses onto state roads shall be
approved in writing by the SCDOT prior to plat approval by the
subdivision administrator with the exception of subsection (d)
below.

2. Section 38-353 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South
Carolina is hereby amended to add Section 38-353 (d) to read as set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 



3. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of
Ordinances not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed
unconstitutional or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby 
deemed separable. 

5. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County
Council inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

6. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third
Reading and Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 
2021. 

ATTEST:  FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

Rusty Burns   Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

M. Phyllis White
 Interim Clerk to 
Council 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: _________________

2nd Reading:__________________ 



3rd Reading:___________________ 

Public Hearing:________________ 
 
  



Exhibit A 
 
Section 38-353 (d). – Private Road Standards 
Anderson County shall have no responsibility for nor control of the design, engineering, 
construction, inspection or maintenance of private driveways, drives and roads in 
Anderson County and shall only be involved with private driveways, drives and roads 
to enforce these regulations and to the extent required for the county to carry out its 
other duties and functions, such as approving the subdivision of property. 
 
Private roads. Private roads shall provide vehicular access and road frontage to 
developments, or sections of developments, containing ten or fewer dwellings. All 
private, nondedicated roads shall be prominently indicated as such on plats prior to 
subdivision approval. Maintenance arrangements for such roads must be noted in 
writing on subdivision plat submittals and must be subsequently recorded. The 
development served by a private road shall have direct access onto a public road, with 
no private roads off another private road. No such private road shall be laid out so as to 
serve property outside the development. All private roads shall: 

 
(1) Serve a maximum of 10 lots per private road with each lot containing a minimum 
of 2 acres, excluding the road right of way. 
(2) Further subdividing of parcels are prohibited. 
 
(3) Have a minimum road right-of-way width of 50 feet;  
 
(4) Have a minimum driving surface width of 18 feet constructed of no less than six 
inches of compacted crusher run base; a minimum height clearance of 13½ feet; and 
appropriate documentation from a professional engineer licensed by the State of South 
Carolina certifying the maximum weight limit of any bridge or culvert located along the 
drive. All bridges and any culvert over which a private drive crosses a perennial stream 
must include appropriate signage (located at each end of the bridge) displaying the 
structure's weight limits. Roads designed to be permanently closed at one end shall be 
terminated by circular right of way of not less than a 50-foot radius from the center point 
of the circular right of way and a gravel radius of not less than 35 feet from said center 
point.  
 
(5) Be maintained by an association of property owners or the developer and be 
designated on all plats and recorded in appropriate deed covenants and restrictions, and 
an appropriately executed road maintenance agreement as defined by these regulations; 
 
(6) Parcel boundaries may extend to the centerline of the road, with the appropriate 
right-of-way designated on all plats and deeds; 
 
(7) A surveyor must provide a recorded plat after a registered professional licensed 
engineer certifies that it meets the private road standards found in Section 38-353. 
 
(8) Be named in accordance with adopted E-911 addressing regulations; 



 
(9) Meet all stormwater management and sediment control regulations: 

 
(10) Have installed signs that control the traffic flow in a safe manner as specified by 
standards in the Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices; 
 
(11) Have a speed limit between 10 & 25 miles per hour, with corresponding speed 
limit signs; 
 
(12) Be properly approved in writing by land development administrator prior to 
submission of plat(s) to the Register of Deeds for recording.  The following shall be 
prominently printed on the plat(s): 
 

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT SHALL BE A 
PRIVATE ROAD, NOT OWNED, MAINTAINED OR SUPERVISED BY 
ANDERSON COUNTY AND NOT CONSTRUCTED PURSUANT TO 
ANY PLAN FOR FUTURE ACCEPTANCE BY ANDERSON COUNTY. 
ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN UPON THE PLAT SHALL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY ANDERSON COUNTY AT ANY 
TIME IN THE FUTURE UNLESS CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH ALL ANDERSON COUNTY REGULATIONS. MAINTENANCE 
OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 
HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT. 

 
(13) With the exception of the requirements put forth in this section, all private roads 
shall meet the requirements for all public roads as defined by this article. 
 
(14) A road maintenance agreement draft must be approved before a “Preliminary 
Plat Approval” can be given to a project. The attached sample agreement should be 
modified to suit the particular needs of a project, such as basing the costs in paragraph 
3 on acreage or front-foot dimensions instead of lots. If these provisions are incorporated 
into a master deed or other document containing covenants and restrictions for the 
subdivision, that document may be submitted in addition to a road agreement. The 
developer should also note that this sample agreement contains certain provisions, which 
are considered essential by the Planning Commission.  
 
(15) “Final Plat Approval” is granted on the same basis as a standard subdivision with 
the addition of the Road Maintenance Agreement. (Exhibit 1 below) 
  



Exhibit 1 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )               ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT  

                                                     )                         FOR    _____________________ SUBDIVISION  

COUNTY OF ANDERSON          ) 

 

WHEREAS, the undersigned, ________________________ is the owner and 

developer of the property described below, and;  

 

WHEREAS, (the owner/developer) desires to impose restrictions and conditions for 

the use and maintenance of the (description of the road) to be jointly owned by any and all 

purchasers of the lots set forth hereinafter below.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the (the 

owner/developer) does hereby impose the following restrictions and conditions and 

covenants upon the lands described as follows:  

“Legal description, to include the name of the subdivision  

and the plat book location in the Office of the Register of Deeds” 

 

THE CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS imposed on the aforesaid property are as 

follows:  

 

1. The (description of the road) running through said property as shown on the aforesaid 

plat is for the joint use of the owners of lots (description of the lots) , their heirs, 

successors, and assigns, for ingress and egress to and from the respective lots and for 

the installation of public utilities. These owners shall be called the (subdivision name) 

Property Owners Association hereinafter called the Association.  

 

2. A property owner is a person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust, or other 

legal entity, or any combination thereof, which is the holder of a deed to a lot in 

__(Subdivision Name)__ subdivision. It is the responsibility of each present and 

subsequent member of the Association to assist in keeping the road in a high state of 

maintenance and to respect the rights of the other property owners in its use. Since this 

road is not being engineered and constructed according to Anderson County standards, 

it will not be the responsibility of Anderson County to maintain this road.  

 

3. Maintenance costs to the said roadway shall be borne in accordance with the 

percentage of ownership of the lots hereinabove set forth; said interest at this state 

being solely in the name of (the owner/developer) . Percentage shall be divided equally 

for each lot owned, therefore, with the property subdivided into (number) lots, the 

ownership of each lot represents (fraction) of the maintenance cost to be shared. The 

developer shall carry all the  



 
4. responsibilities of a lot owner in proportion to the number of lots owned. There shall 

also be no further subdividing of lots within this subdivision.  

 

5. The Association in January of each year shall elect a Board of Directors consisting of 

(number) members. This Board shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of the 

roadways in __(Subdivision Name)__ subdivision, and is authorized to direct the 

financial matters of the property owners concerning collection of assessments and 

necessary expenditures of joint funds of the property owners. To carry out these duties, 

the Board shall elect a President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer.  

 

6. Upon the initial sale of each lot, __________ dollars shall be set aside in escrow by the 

developer to be drawn upon as determined by the Board of Directors stipulated above 

to provide maintenance to the aforesaid roadway.  

7. There shall also be an annual assessment upon each lot owner, which shall be due on 

July 1st of each year. Initially this assessment shall be __________ dollars per lot per 

year. This amount may be changed at any time by a two-thirds vote of the members of 

the Association. The obligation of each lot owner to pay this assessment shall be a 

continuing lien upon the lot, subject only to the lien on a bona fide first mortgage upon 

such real property held by a reputable financial institution; and said lien may be 

enforced by the Association in all respects as though secured by a recorded mortgage as 

provided by the laws of the State of South Carolina.  

 

NOTE: For unpaved roads the escrow amount and annual assessment shall be equal to the 

annual maintenance cost divided by the number of lots. For paved roads the annual 

assessment shall be equal to the replacement cost of the roadway divided by the number of 

lots and also divided by 20, representing the life of the road. 

NOTE: Escrowed funds are not mandatory on paved road projects, however, on unpaved 

roads the amount per lot shall not be less than $100.  

 

8. This instrument is to be recorded in the Anderson County Office of the Register of 

Deeds, and the undersigned, (the owner/developer) , and all future owners shall cause 

the following statement to be placed in every contract and deed conveying lots out of 

this subdivision. This statement shall be signed by the grantee(s) and shall be placed 

immediately below the grantor's signature and shall be binding on all parties thereof. 

Failure of any subsequent purchaser to comply with this provision shall in no way 

diminish or impair the terms of this agreement and the conditions, benefits, and 

obligations imposed and granted thereunder.  

 



“I, the undersigned, as purchaser of the above lot described in this deed/contract, 

acknowledge the existence of the road maintenance agreement as recorded in the 

Office of the Register of Deeds for Anderson County in Deed Book _____ at Page _____, 

do hereby confirm by acceptance of this deed/contract all the terms and conditions 

thereof. I understand that since the road described in that agreement is not being 

engineered and constructed according to Anderson County standards, it will not be the 

responsibility of Anderson County to maintain that road. I further acknowledge that the 

lot owners subject to that agreement shall be responsible for the maintenance and 

upkeep of that road.” 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused these presents to be executed this 

the ________ day of ______, 20_____ in Anderson, South Carolina. 

 

WITNESSES:    BY: Property Owner(s) 

 

_______________________  _____________________ 

  (Witness #1 sign) 

 

________________________  ______________________ 

 (Witness #2 sign)    (Owner or Owners sign) 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

        ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON     ) 

 

 PERSONALLY APPEARED before me the undersigned witnesses, who, being duly sworn, 

deposes and says that he/she saw the within named property owner(s) sign and seal the 

within Road Maintenance Agreement for the uses and purposes therein mentioned and 

that he/she with the other witness, witnessed the execution thereof. 

 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS  ) 

______ day of ________, 20____ ) 

     ) 

________________________(L.S.) ) ________________________ 

Notary Public for South Carolina ) (Witness #1 or #2 sign) 

My Commission Expires:________ ) 



Exhibit A 
 
Section 38-353 (d). – Private Road Standards 
Anderson County shall have no responsibility for nor control of the design, engineering, 
construction, inspection or maintenance of private driveways, drives and roads in 
Anderson County and shall only be involved with private driveways, drives and roads 
to enforce these regulations and to the extent required for the county to carry out its 
other duties and functions, such as approving the subdivision of property. 
 
Private roads. Private roads shall provide vehicular access and road frontage to 
developments, or sections of developments, containing ten or fewer dwellings. All 
private, nondedicated roads shall be prominently indicated as such on plats prior to 
subdivision approval. Maintenance arrangements for such roads must be noted in 
writing on subdivision plat submittals and must be subsequently recorded. The 
development served by a private road shall have direct access onto a public road, with 
no private roads off another private road. No such private road shall be laid out so as to 
serve property outside the development. All private roads shall: 

 
(1) Serve a maximum of 10 lots per private road with each lot containing a minimum 
of 2 acres, excluding the road right of way. 
(2) Further subdividing of parcels are prohibited. 
 
(3) Have a minimum road right-of-way width of 50 feet;  
 
(4) Have a minimum driving surface width of 18 feet constructed of no less than six 
inches of compacted crusher run base; a minimum height clearance of 13½ feet; and 
appropriate documentation from a professional engineer licensed by the State of South 
Carolina certifying the maximum weight limit of any bridge or culvert located along the 
drive. All bridges and any culvert over which a private drive crosses a perennial stream 
must include appropriate signage (located at each end of the bridge) displaying the 
structure's weight limits. Roads designed to be permanently closed at one end shall be 
terminated by circular right of way of not less than a 50-foot radius from the center point 
of the circular right of way and a gravel radius of not less than 35 feet from said center 
point.  
 
(5) Be maintained by an association of property owners or the developer and be 
designated on all plats and recorded in appropriate deed covenants and restrictions, and 
an appropriately executed road maintenance agreement as defined by these regulations; 
 
(6) Parcel boundaries may extend to the centerline of the road, with the appropriate 
right-of-way designated on all plats and deeds; 
 
(7) A surveyor must provide a recorded plat after a registered professional licensed 
engineer certifies that it meets the private road standards found in Section 38-353. 
 
(8) Be named in accordance with adopted E-911 addressing regulations; 



 
(9) Meet all stormwater management and sediment control regulations: 

 
(10) Have installed signs that control the traffic flow in a safe manner as specified by 
standards in the Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices; 
 
(11) Have a speed limit between 10 & 25 miles per hour, with corresponding speed 
limit signs; 
 
(12) Be properly approved in writing by land development administrator prior to 
submission of plat(s) to the Register of Deeds for recording.  The following shall be 
prominently printed on the plat(s): 
 

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT SHALL BE A 
PRIVATE ROAD, NOT OWNED, MAINTAINED OR SUPERVISED BY 
ANDERSON COUNTY AND NOT CONSTRUCTED PURSUANT TO 
ANY PLAN FOR FUTURE ACCEPTANCE BY ANDERSON COUNTY. 
ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN UPON THE PLAT SHALL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY ANDERSON COUNTY AT ANY 
TIME IN THE FUTURE UNLESS CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH ALL ANDERSON COUNTY REGULATIONS. MAINTENANCE 
OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 
HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT. 

 
(13) With the exception of the requirements put forth in this section, all private roads 
shall meet the requirements for all public roads as defined by this article. 
 
(14) A road maintenance agreement draft must be approved before a “Preliminary 
Plat Approval” can be given to a project. The attached sample agreement should be 
modified to suit the particular needs of a project, such as basing the costs in paragraph 
3 on acreage or front-foot dimensions instead of lots. If these provisions are incorporated 
into a master deed or other document containing covenants and restrictions for the 
subdivision, that document may be submitted in addition to a road agreement. The 
developer should also note that this sample agreement contains certain provisions, which 
are considered essential by the Planning Commission.  
 
(15) “Final Plat Approval” is granted on the same basis as a standard subdivision with 
the addition of the Road Maintenance Agreement. (Exhibit 1 below) 
  



Exhibit 1 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )               ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT  

                                                     )                         FOR    _____________________ SUBDIVISION  

COUNTY OF ANDERSON          ) 

 

WHEREAS, the undersigned, ________________________ is the owner and 

developer of the property described below, and;  

 

WHEREAS, (the owner/developer) desires to impose restrictions and conditions for 

the use and maintenance of the (description of the road) to be jointly owned by any and all 

purchasers of the lots set forth hereinafter below.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the (the 

owner/developer) does hereby impose the following restrictions and conditions and 

covenants upon the lands described as follows:  

“Legal description, to include the name of the subdivision  

and the plat book location in the Office of the Register of Deeds” 

 

THE CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS imposed on the aforesaid property are as 

follows:  

 

1. The (description of the road) running through said property as shown on the aforesaid 

plat is for the joint use of the owners of lots (description of the lots) , their heirs, 

successors, and assigns, for ingress and egress to and from the respective lots and for 

the installation of public utilities. These owners shall be called the (subdivision name) 

Property Owners Association hereinafter called the Association.  

 

2. A property owner is a person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust, or other 

legal entity, or any combination thereof, which is the holder of a deed to a lot in 

__(Subdivision Name)__ subdivision. It is the responsibility of each present and 

subsequent member of the Association to assist in keeping the road in a high state of 

maintenance and to respect the rights of the other property owners in its use. Since this 

road is not being engineered and constructed according to Anderson County standards, 

it will not be the responsibility of Anderson County to maintain this road.  

 

3. Maintenance costs to the said roadway shall be borne in accordance with the 

percentage of ownership of the lots hereinabove set forth; said interest at this state 

being solely in the name of (the owner/developer) . Percentage shall be divided equally 

for each lot owned, therefore, with the property subdivided into (number) lots, the 

ownership of each lot represents (fraction) of the maintenance cost to be shared. The 

developer shall carry all the  



 
4. responsibilities of a lot owner in proportion to the number of lots owned. There shall 

also be no further subdividing of lots within this subdivision.  

 

5. The Association in January of each year shall elect a Board of Directors consisting of 

(number) members. This Board shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of the 

roadways in __(Subdivision Name)__ subdivision, and is authorized to direct the 

financial matters of the property owners concerning collection of assessments and 

necessary expenditures of joint funds of the property owners. To carry out these duties, 

the Board shall elect a President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer.  

 

6. Upon the initial sale of each lot, __________ dollars shall be set aside in escrow by the 

developer to be drawn upon as determined by the Board of Directors stipulated above 

to provide maintenance to the aforesaid roadway.  

7. There shall also be an annual assessment upon each lot owner, which shall be due on 

July 1st of each year. Initially this assessment shall be __________ dollars per lot per 

year. This amount may be changed at any time by a two-thirds vote of the members of 

the Association. The obligation of each lot owner to pay this assessment shall be a 

continuing lien upon the lot, subject only to the lien on a bona fide first mortgage upon 

such real property held by a reputable financial institution; and said lien may be 

enforced by the Association in all respects as though secured by a recorded mortgage as 

provided by the laws of the State of South Carolina.  

 

NOTE: For unpaved roads the escrow amount and annual assessment shall be equal to the 

annual maintenance cost divided by the number of lots. For paved roads the annual 

assessment shall be equal to the replacement cost of the roadway divided by the number of 

lots and also divided by 20, representing the life of the road. 

NOTE: Escrowed funds are not mandatory on paved road projects, however, on unpaved 

roads the amount per lot shall not be less than $100.  

 

8. This instrument is to be recorded in the Anderson County Office of the Register of 

Deeds, and the undersigned, (the owner/developer) , and all future owners shall cause 

the following statement to be placed in every contract and deed conveying lots out of 

this subdivision. This statement shall be signed by the grantee(s) and shall be placed 

immediately below the grantor's signature and shall be binding on all parties thereof. 

Failure of any subsequent purchaser to comply with this provision shall in no way 

diminish or impair the terms of this agreement and the conditions, benefits, and 

obligations imposed and granted thereunder.  

 



“I, the undersigned, as purchaser of the above lot described in this deed/contract, 

acknowledge the existence of the road maintenance agreement as recorded in the 

Office of the Register of Deeds for Anderson County in Deed Book _____ at Page _____, 

do hereby confirm by acceptance of this deed/contract all the terms and conditions 

thereof. I understand that since the road described in that agreement is not being 

engineered and constructed according to Anderson County standards, it will not be the 

responsibility of Anderson County to maintain that road. I further acknowledge that the 

lot owners subject to that agreement shall be responsible for the maintenance and 

upkeep of that road.” 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused these presents to be executed this 

the ________ day of ______, 20_____ in Anderson, South Carolina. 

 

WITNESSES:    BY: Property Owner(s) 

 

_______________________  _____________________ 

  (Witness #1 sign) 

 

________________________  ______________________ 

 (Witness #2 sign)    (Owner or Owners sign) 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

        ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON     ) 

 

 PERSONALLY APPEARED before me the undersigned witnesses, who, being duly sworn, 

deposes and says that he/she saw the within named property owner(s) sign and seal the 

within Road Maintenance Agreement for the uses and purposes therein mentioned and 

that he/she with the other witness, witnessed the execution thereof. 

 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS  ) 

______ day of ________, 20____ ) 

     ) 

________________________(L.S.) ) ________________________ 

Notary Public for South Carolina ) (Witness #1 or #2 sign) 

My Commission Expires:________ ) 





































Council Check Check

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendors Description Amount

8/2512020 91212020 88827

8125/2020 91212020 88946

101612020 10114/2020 90366

1111212020 1111812020 91089

1111212020 1111812020 91093

1111212020 1111812020 91103

11/12/2020 1111812020 91278

11/1212020 1111812020 91088

11120/2020 121212020 91591

1211512020 1211612020 91839

1211512020 1212212020 92059

1/1912021 112012021 92728

111912021 112012021 92783

21212021 211012021 93103

3/212021 3/312021 94448

412012021 511212021 95590

Brought Forward

Anderson Pregnancy Care

Proverbs Mentoring Organization

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies)

Anderson Cavaliers

Anderson County Library

Anderson Five Education Foundation

Widows Watchmen

YMCA of Anderson

25,000.00

5,000.00

2,759.43

1,000.00

(5,000.00)

(1,000.00)

(250.00)

(500.00)

(10,000.00)

(4,000.00)

(500.00)

(3,000.00)

(500.00)

(250.00)

(2,000.00)

(500.00)

(500.00)

(400.00)

(1,250.00)

(500.00)

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

_____________

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE:

DISTRICT I - SPECIAL PROJECTS

001 -5829-001 -241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

May 13, 2021

Budget 2020 - 2021
— --- From Accommodations Fee

Return of Appropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used - FY 16/17

Tackling the Streets

Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless)

Anderson Interfaith Ministries (Home Repairs)

Palmetto Knights (Battle of Nations)

Vets Helping Vets of Anderson (to purchase a storage container)

Anderson Arts Center (Rainbow Gang)

Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA)

Safe Harbor

SUB-TOTAL

Committed:

Ending Balance

3,609.43

3,609.43

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: May 13, 2021



May 13, 2021

DISTRICT 2- SPECIAL PROJECTS

001 -5829-002-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Council Check Check

Meeting of: Dated: Number

8I25I2020 812612020 88807

101612020 1011412020 90239

101612020 1011412020 90275

101612020 1011412020 90360

101612020 1011412020 90360

101612020 1012112020 90526

11/1212020 11/18/2020 91135

11/12/2020 11/18/2020 91174

Brought Forward

Vendor Description

Zone Services, The

Calvary Homes for Children

Generation 4 (Community Food Bank)

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Food Bank)

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide)

Pofter’s House Restoration

City of Anderson Recreation

Haven of Rest

Amount

25,000.00

5,000.00

14,657.50

(820.00)

(2,000.00)

(2,000.00)

(2,000.00)

(250.00)

(2,500.00)

(1,500.00)

(1,000.00)

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager

DATE:

DATE: May 13, 2021

Budget 2020-2021

From Accommodations Fee

SUB-TOTAL 32,587.50

Commifted:

Ending Balance 32,587.50

(\cuL L’5tif

U



DISTRICT 3- SPECIAL PROJECTS

May 13, 2021

Council Check Check

Meeting of: Dated: Number

001 -5829-003-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Vendors Description Amount

71712020 7/15/2020 87579

71712020 711512020 87740

10I6/2020 10/14/2020 90360

11/12/2020 11/18/2020 91146

1211512020 1211612020 91839

12/15/2020 12/22/2020 92061

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92783

2/16/2021 2/24/2021 93449

3/2/2021 3/3/2021 94448

4120/2021 5/12/2021 95512

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95546

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95590

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95607

4/20/2021 Crescent Elite Shooters

Ending Balance

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

____________________________________

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE:

25,000.00

5,000.00

578.89

(2,000.00)

(960.00)

(250.00)

(1,000.00)

(100.00)

(3,000.00)

(500.00)

(5,000.00)

(250.00)

(5,000.00)

(5,000.00)

(500.00)

(5,000.00)

(500.00)

1,518.89

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: May 13, 2021

Budget 2020 - 2021

From Accommodations Fee

Brought Forward

American Legion Post #44

Town of Starr for PRD Grant

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide)

Crescent Elite Shooters

Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless)

Anderson Pregnancy Care (Building Furnishings)

Vets Helping Vets of Anderson (to purchase a storage container)

Belton Alliance (Belton Rail Trail)

Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA)

City of Belton

Iva Recreation

Safe Harbor

Starr Recreation

SUB-TOTAL

Committed:

2,018.89

‘1



DISTRICT 4- SPECIAL PROJECTS

May 13, 2021

Council Check Check

001-5829-004-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Meeting of: Dated: Number

8125/2020 91212020 88828

812512020 91212020 88875

10/6/2020 10/14/2020 90360

10/612020 10/14/2020 90366

11/12/2020 11/18/2020 91165

11/20/2020 12/2/2020 91591

12/15/2020 12/16/2020 91839

12/15/2020 12/22/2020 92172

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92728

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92783

2/2/2021 2/10/2021 93104

3/2/2021 3/10/2021 93914

3/2/2021 3/3/2021 94448

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95590

Vendor \ Description

Anderson Arts Center (Rainbow Gang)

SC Upstate Equine Council

Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA)

Safe Harbor

Amount

25,000.00

5,000.00

18,706.99

5,000.00

(500.00)

(300.00)

(250.00)

(250.00)

(1,500.00)

(500.00)

(500.00)

(250.00)

(500.00)

(1,250.00)

(400.00)

(2,000.00)

(250.00)

(500.00)

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager

DATE:

DATE: May 13, 2021

Budget 2020-2021

From Accommodations Fee

Brought Forward

Return ofAppropriation from SC Upstate Equine that was not used - FY 16/17

Anderson Pregnancy Care

Distinguished Young Women

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide)

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies)

Goats 4 Goodness

Tackling the Streets

Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless)

Tiaras to Crowns (Winter coast and supplies)

Palmetto Knights (Battle of Nations)

Vets Helping Vets of Anderson (to purchase a storage container)

SUB-TOTAL

Committed:

Ending Balance

44,756.99

44,756.99

LI



Council Check Check

Meeting of: Dated: Number

DISTRICT 5- SPECIAL PROJECTS

001 -5829-005-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Vendor Description

May 13, 2021

Amount

812512020 91212020 88829

812512020 9/212020 88874

101612020 10/1412020 90360

1016/2020 10/14/2020 90366

11/12/2020 11/18/2020 91089

11/20/2020 12/2/2020 91591

12/15/2020 12/16/2020 91839

12/15/2020 12/17/2020 JE 9076

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92728

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92783

2/2/2021 2/10/2021 93105

3/2/2021 3/3/2021 94448

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95590

Brought Forward

Anderson Pregnancy Care

Distinguished Young Women

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide)

Tiaras to Crowns (Bookbags & Supplies)

Anderson Cavaliers

25,000.00

5,000.00

8,390.05

(500.00)

(300.00)

(250.00)

(250.00)

(500.00)

(500.00)

(150.00)

(2,500.00)

(500.00)

(500.00)

(400.00)

(250.00)

(500.00)

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE:

Budget 2020 - 2021

From Accommodations Fee

Tackling the Streets

Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless)

PARD Match Wellington Park (Basketball Court)

Palmetto Knights (Battle of Nations)

Vets Helping Vets of Anderson (to purchase a storage container)

Anderson Arts Center (Rainbow Gang)

Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA)

Safe Harbor

SUB-TOTAL

Committed:

Ending Balance

31,290.05

31,290.05

(7kcL. Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: May 13, 2021



May 13, 2021

Council Check Check

DISTRICT 6- SPECIAL PROJECTS

001 -5829-006-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Meeting of: Dated: Number

8/26/2020 9/2/2020 88856

8/25/2020 9/2/2020 88873

8/26/2020 9/2/2020 88942

10/6/2020 10/14/2020 90360

10/6/2020 10/14/2020 90389

1211512020 12116/2020 91839

12/15/2020 12/17/2020 JE 9076

1/19/2021 1/20/2021 92783

3/2/2021 3/8/2021 JE 9103

3/2/2021 3/3/2021 94448

4/6/2021 4/14/2021 94856

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95590

Vendor Description

Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA)

Piedmont Historical Preservation Society

Safe Harbor

Amount

25,000.00

5,000.00

9,194.45

(6,000.00)

(300.00)

(5,000.00)

(250.00)

(2,500.00)

(100.00)

(5,000.00)

(500.00)

(2,500.00)

(250.00)

(2,500.00)

(500.00)

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager

DATE:

DATE: May 13, 2021

Budget 2020 - 2021

From Accommodations Fee

Brought Forward

CESATri County

Distinguished Young Women

PLAY (Powdersville League of Athletic Youth)

South Main Chapel and Mercy Center (Resource Guide)

YMCA of Powdersville (mentor Program)

Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless)

PARD Match Hurricane Springs Park (Park Improvements)

Vets Helping Vets of Anderson (to purchase a storage container)

Saluda River Rally

SUB-TOTAL 13,794.45

Committed:

Ending Balance 13,794.45

cJcLcR
LI



.. .,$ May 13, 2021

DISTRICT 7 - SPECIAL PROJECTS

001 -5829-007-241

FY Ended June 30, 2021

Council Check Check

Meeting of: Dated: Number Vendor\ Description Amount

— --- Budget 2020 - 2021 25,00000
--- --- From Accommodations Fee 5,000.00

Brought Forward 50.00

1111212020 11118/2020 91130 CheddarYouth Center (3,500.00)

1112012020 121212020 91533 Honea Path Free Clinic (1,000.00)

1112012020 121212020 91548 Mill Town Players (1,300.00)

11/2012020 121212020 91594 Town of Pelzer (1,000.00)

12115/2020 1211612020 91839 Anchored in His Grace Ministry (Assist in feeding the homeless) (100.00)

1211512020 1212212020 92175 Town of Pelzer (Assist with Mural) (200.00)

111912021 112012021 92728 Palmetto Knights (Battle of Nations) (500.00)

111912021 112012021 92783 Vets Helping Vets ofAnderson (to purchase a storage container) (250.00)

31212021 3/3/2021 94448 Fellowship of Christian Athletes (FCA) (250.00)

31212021 3I8I2021 JE 9103 Saluda River Rally (2,500.00)

31212021 3/512021 93941 Town of Williamston (Recreation for Youth) (5,000.00)

3/16/2021 3/24/2021 94352 Town of Honea Path (Recreation Needs) (5,000.00)

311612021 3/24/2021 94355 Town of Pelzer ( Recreation Needs) (1,000.00)

311612021 3/24I2021 94354 Town of West Peizer (Recreation Needs) (3,500.00)

4/20/2021 5/12/2021 95590 Safe Harbor (500.00)

SUB-TOTAL 4,450.00

Committed:

4/20/2021 Carolina Community Center (3,500.00)

Ending Balance 950.00

We certify that the above information to the best of our knowledge is up-to-date and is accurate.

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to Council DATE:

Jana Pressley, Assistant Finance Manager DATE: May 13, 2021



A
ll

P
r
o

j
e
c
t

R
e
p

o
r
t

-
A

p
r
i
l

2
0
2
1

C
er

ti
fi

ed
by

:
N

ei
l

C
ar

n
ey

D
at

e:
5-

3-
20

21

$2
,2

13
,9

98
.5

9
I

1\4
)

D
at

e

A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE

D
.
I
I
T

.
I
.
I
f
4
k

A
p

p
ro

v
ed

D
at

e
P

ro
je

ct
S

co
p
e

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

at
ed

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
S

p
en

t
to

D
at

e
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

D
at

e

08
/0

7/
18

T
ow

nv
ill

e
Fi

re
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
P

av
e

P
ar

ki
ng

Lo
t

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

.6
00

.0
0

04
/3

0/
19

08
/0

7/
18

T
ow

n
of

H
o
n
ea

P
at

h
P

av
in

g
$4

8,
00

0.
00

$1
8,

34
5.

05

08
/0

7/
1

8
T

ow
n

of
P

ei
ze

r
P

av
in

g
$1

7,
00

0.
00

$5
.2

1
7.

45

08
/0

7/
18

T
ow

n
of

W
es

t
P

ei
ze

r
P

av
in

g
$2

5,
00

0.
00

$2
5,

00
0.

00

08
/0

7/
18

T
ow

n
of

W
ill

ia
m

st
on

P
av

in
g

$5
2,

00
0.

00
$2

1,
59

5.
27

08
/2

1/
18

S
ch

oo
l

D
is

tr
ic

t
R

oa
d

in
D

6
P

av
in

g
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

10
/0

2/
18

M
en

ta
l

H
ea

lt
h

P
ar

ki
ng

L
ot

P
av

e
P

ar
ki

ng
Lo

t
$2

3,
15

8.
55

$2
3,

15
8.

55

10
/0

4/
18

C
-F

un
d

M
at

ch
in

g
F

un
ds

P
av

in
g

$3
15

,0
00

.0
0

$3
15

,0
00

.0
0

T
ra

ns
fe

r
co

m
p
le

te

11
/0

7/
18

R
oa

d
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
t

P
la

n
S

ee
B

el
ow

$1
.7

23
,8

40
.0

4
$2

,2
24

,7
50

.6
8

T
ot

al
s:

$2
.2

1
3,

99
8.

59
$2

,6
34

,6
67

.0
0

R
oa

d
N

am
e

D
Is

tr
Ic

t
S

co
p
e

of
W

or
k

E
st

im
at

e
T

ot
al

S
pe

nt
to

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

H
ob

so
n

R
oa

d
1

C
S

/P
av

e
$8

3,
57

1
$8

1
44

9,
14

01
/0

0/
00

O
ak

ri
d

g
e

C
ou

rt
1

C
S

/P
av

e
$1

8,
90

8
$1

9,
34

6.
79

01
/0

0/
00

H
ar

bi
so

n
D

ri
ve

7
F

D
P

/P
av

e
$4

6,
63

3
$0

.0
0

01
/0

0/
00

P
la

nt
at

io
n

R
oa

d
4

C
IP

R
$5

1
.0

00
$5

2,
20

5.
60

01
/0

0/
00

B
ra

nc
h

R
oa

d
4

C
IP

R
$8

6,
28

8
$8

1
.5

50
.6

1
01

/0
0/

00

V
al

le
yD

ri
ve

4
C

IP
R

$4
3,

14
4

$4
3,

96
7.

21
01

/0
0/

00

M
ea

d
o

w
R

o
ad

4
C

IP
R

$5
1

.5
84

$2
5,

39
6.

28
01

/0
0/

00

G
ov

er
no

r’
s

B
ou

le
va

rd
1

F
D

R
/P

av
e

$1
71

.0
24

$1
64

,9
79

.0
9

01
/0

0/
00

H
op

ew
el

l
R

id
ge

7
C

IP
R

/P
av

e
$1

52
,6

36
$1

37
,1

89
.0

1
01

/0
0/

D
O

W
in

di
ng

C
re

ek
R

oa
d

7
C

IP
R

/P
av

e
$7

3,
90

1
$6

9,
59

1.
91

01
/0

0/
00

C
re

ek
si

d
e

C
ou

rt
7

C
IP

R
/P

av
e

$1
4,

42
5

$2
0,

65
1.

79
01

/0
0/

00

C
ro

ss
ri

dg
e

L
an

e
7

C
IP

R
/P

av
e

$1
7,

22
4

$2
3,

66
7.

65
01

/0
0/

00

O
ld

O
ak

Tr
ai

l
7

C
IP

R
/P

av
e

$2
1

.0
92

$2
9,

64
4.

68
01

/0
0/

00

G
ro

ve
R

o
ad

2/
3

P
av

e
$1

42
,9

44
$1

42
,8

05
,4

4
01

/0
0/

00

Sh
ir

le
y

D
ri

ve
2

P
av

e
$1

75
,4

67
$1

38
,4

88
.6

’
01

/0
0/

00

A
ir

lin
e

R
oa

d
3/

5
FD

P/
ST

/F
S

$2
43

,2
93

$2
37

,1
57

.9
5

01
/0

0/
00

F
ir

et
ow

er
R

oa
d

6/
4

FD
P/

ST
/F

S
$1

42
,9

82
$1

88
,3

92
.0

8
01

/0
0/

00

O
ld

W
eb

b
R

oa
d

5
F

D
P

/P
av

e
$1

84
,9

05
$1

75
,6

14
.7

8
01

/0
0/

00

H
ol

de
n

L
an

e
5

M
il

l/
B

in
de

r/
P

av
e

$1
0,

51
5

$1
2,

89
5.

21
01

/0
0/

00

C
el

y
L

an
e

6
F

O
P

/P
av

e
$2

44
,6

79
$3

65
,7

58
.3

3
01

/0
0/

00

$1
.9

76
,2

1
5

$2
,0

10
.7

52
.2

T
ot

al
$2

,2
70

,8
42

.0
4

FY
18

-1
9

B
ud

ge
t

$1
,5

00
,0

00
.0

0
T

ra
ns

fe
r

In
$7

70
,8

42
.0

4

I
P

re
p
ar

ed
by

:
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

$5
6,

84
3,

45
1

FD
P

=
F

ul
l-

D
ep

th
P

at
ch

in
g

:
FD

R
=

F
ul

l-
D

ep
th

R
ec

la
m

at
io

n
,

ST
=

S
in

gl
e-

T
re

at
m

en
t:

ES
=

F
og

S
ea

l:
P

av
e

=
R

es
ur

fa
ce

w
It

h
A

sp
ha

lt
;

C
S

=
C

ra
ck

S
ea

l



D
is

tr
ic

t
I

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

T
h
ro

u
g
h

A
p
ri

l
3
0
th

,
2

0
2

1

F
Y

I
8

-
1

9
B

u
d
g

e
t

in
c
lu

d
e
s

C
a
r
r
y

f
o

r
w

a
r
d

f
r
o
m

F
Y

I
7
-
I

8
B

u
d
g
e
t

$
6

5
,2

9
0

.0
0

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
$

6
5

,2
9

0
.0

0

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$0
.0

0

1/
16

/2
0

18
O

ak
H

ill
D

ri
ve

T
ra

ff
ic

C
on

tr
ol

R
ad

ar
si

gn
&

re
fl

e
c
to

rs

D
is

tr
ic

t
t

P
av

in
g

P
la

n

$3
90

3.
03

$3
90

3.
03

—
.—

,.
—

—
‘—

.—
‘+

!
?
p

!

FD
P

=
F

u
ll

D
e
p
th

P
a
tc

h
in

g
;

F
D

R
F

u
ll

D
e
p

th
R

e
c
la

m
a
ti

o
n

,
S

T
S

in
g
le

T
re

a
t;

F
S

F
o
g

S
e
a
l;

P
a
v
e

R
e
s
u
rf

a
c
e

w
it

A
s
h
p
h
a
ll

;
C

S
C

ra
c
k

S
e
a
l

P
ro

je
ct

/T
ow

ns
-C

it
ie

s/
O

th
er

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sp

en
t

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

C
ity

of
A

nd
er

so
n

-
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

U
pg

ra
de

ro
ad

s,
11

/2
/2

01
6

C
iv

ic
C

en
te

r
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g
$5

6,
30

6.
16

$5
6,

30
6.

16
in

c
o
m

p
le

te

A
no

ro
va

l
D

at
e

P
ro

je
c
t

T
ot

al
s:

$6
0,

20
9.

19
$6

0,
20

9.
19

Sc
on

e
A

no
ro

or
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
So

en
t

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
ol

et
io

n
D

at
e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

no
w

in
ac

co
un

t
00

0

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
nn

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

o
f

ou
r

kn
ow

le
dg

e,

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
m

at
io

n
as

of
A

pr
il

30
th

,
20

21

Pr
ep

ar
ed

B
y:

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt
R

oa
ds

&
B

ri
dg

es

C
er

tif
ie

d
B

y:
N

ei
l

C
ar

ne
y

D
at

e

N
ei

l
C

am
ey

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt

M
ay

3,
20

21

D
at

e



D
is

tr
ic

t
2

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

T
hr

ou
gh

A
pr

il
30

th
,

20
21

FY
18

-1
9

B
ud

ge
t

in
cl

ud
es

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d
fr

om
FY

17
-1

8
B

ud
ge

t
$0

.0
0

C
om

m
itt

ed
$0

.0
0

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$0
.0

0

F
D

P
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
Pa

tc
hi

ng
;

F
D

R
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n,

S
T

Si
ng

le
T

re
at

;
FS

Fo
g

Se
al

;
P

av
e

R
es

ur
fa

ce
w

ith
A

sh
ph

al
t;

C
S

C
ra

ck
Se

al

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

P
ro

je
ct

s/
C

it
ie

s&
T

ow
ns

/O
th

er

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
oa

ta
l

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sp
en

t
T

o-
D

at
e

C
om

pl
et

io
n

D
at

e

C
ity

of
A

nd
er

so
n

G
ra

di
ng

/D
ra

in
ag

e
$0

.0
0

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
is

tr
ic

t
2

P
av

in
g

P
la

n

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sp

en
t

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

m
ov

ed
to

ac
co

un
t

00
0

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

of
ou

r
kn

ow
le

dg
e,

Pr
ep

ar
ed

B
y:

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt
R

oa
ds

&
B

ri
dg

es
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
as

of
A

pr
il

30
th

,
20

21
D

at
e

M
ay

3,
20

21

C
er

tif
ie

d
by

:
N

ei
l

C
am

ey
N

ei
l

C
am

ey

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

D
at

e



D
is

tr
ic

t
3

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

T
hr

ou
gh

A
pr

il
30

th
,

20
21

FY
18

-1
9

B
ud

ge
t

in
cl

ud
es

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d
fr

om
F

Y
I7

-1
8

B
ud

ge
t

$4
2,

69
0.

00

C
om

m
itt

ed
$2

2,
69

0.
00

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$2
0,

00
0.

00

F
D

P
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
Pa

tc
hi

ng
;

F
D

R
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n,

ST
Si

ng
le

T
re

at
;

F
S

=
Fo

g
Se

al
;

P
av

e
R

es
ur

fa
ce

w
it

h
A

sh
ph

al
t;

C
S

=
C

ra
ck

Se
al

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

P
ro

je
ct

s/
T

ow
ns

&
C

it
ie

s/
O

th
er

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
Sp

en
t

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

8/
8/

20
13

T
ow

n
o
fl

v
a

(6
/4

/1
9

re
l

$2
0K

)
G

ra
di

ng
/D

ra
in

ag
e

$4
5,

00
0.

00
$2

6,
35

2.
74

In
co

m
pl

et
e

7/
7/

20
15

T
ow

n
o
fI

va
G

ra
di

ng
/D

ra
in

ag
e

$1
6,

25
0.

00
$0

.0
0

In
co

m
pl

et
e

7/
7/

20
15

T
ow

n
of

St
ar

r
G

ra
di

ng
/D

ra
in

ag
e

$8
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
13

.5
6

In
co

m
pl

et
e

C
ity

o
f

B
el

to
n

G
ra

di
ng

/D
ra

in
ag

e
$0

.0
0

6/
4/

20
19

T
ot

al
s:

$6
9,

25
0.

00
$3

2,
36

6.
30

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

D
is

tr
c
t3

P
a
v

in
P

la
n

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
Sp

en
t

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

m
ov

ed
to

ac
co

un
t

00
0

6/
4/

20
19

E
be

ne
ze

r
Fi

re
D

ep
t

P
av

in
g

$1
1,

30
0.

00
$1

1,
30

0.
00

12
/4

/2
01

9

6/
4/

20
19

St
ar

r
Fi

re
D

en
t

Pa
vi

ng
$0

.0
0

T
ot

al
s:

$1
1,

30
0.

00
$1

1,
30

0.
00

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

o
fo

ur
kn

ow
le

dg
e,

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
as

of
A

pr
il

30
th

,2
02

1

P
re

pa
re

d
B

y:
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

R
oa

ds
an

d
B

ri
dg

es

D
at

e

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt

M
ay

3,
20

21

C
er

ti
fi

ed
B

y:
N

ei
l

C
am

ey
N

ei
l

C
am

ey
M

D
at

e



D
is

tr
ic

t
4

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

FY
18

-1
9

B
ud

ge
t

in
cl

ud
es

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d
fr

om
F

Y
I7

-1
8

B
ud

ge
t

$1
2,

45
5.

00

C
om

m
itt

ed
$1

2,
45

5.
00

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$0
.0

0

F
D

P
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
Pa

tc
hi

ng
;

F
D

R
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n,

ST
=

Si
ng

le
T

re
at

;
FS

=
Fo

g
Se

al
;

P
av

e
=

R
es

ur
fa

ce
w

ith
A

sh
ph

al
t;

C
S

=
C

ra
ck

Se
al

P
ro

je
ct

s/
T

ow
ns

&
C

it
ie

s/
O

th
er

T
ot

al
s:

$3
9,

50
0.

00
$2

7,
04

2.
90

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
4

P
av

in
g

P
la

n

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sp

en
tT

o-
D

at
e

C
om

pl
et

io
n

D
at

e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

m
ov

ed
to

ac
co

un
t

00
0

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

o
fo

u
r

kn
ow

le
dg

e,

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
as

of
A

pr
il

30
th

,
20

21
Pr

ep
ar

ed
B

y:
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

R
oa

ds
&

B
ri

dg
es

D
at

e

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt

M
ay

3,
20

21

C
er

tif
ie

d
B

y:
N

ei
l

C
ar

ne
y

N
ei

l
C

am
ey

T
hr

ou
gh

A
pr

il
30

th
,

20
21

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sp

en
tT

o-
D

at
e

C
om

pl
et

io
n

D
at

e

7/
7/

20
1

5
T

ow
n

of
Pe

nd
le

to
n

G
ra

di
ng

/d
ra

in
ag

e
$3

9,
50

0.
00

$2
7,

04
2.

90
in

co
m

pl
et

e

D
at

e



D
is

tr
ic

t
5

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

T
hr

ou
gh

A
pr

il
30

th
,

20
21

F
Y

I8
-1

9
B

ud
ge

t
in

cl
ud

es
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d

fr
om

F
Y

17
-1

8
B

ud
ge

t
$0

.0
0

C
om

m
it

te
d

$0
.0

0

A
V

A
I
L

A
B

L
E

$
0

.
0

0

F
D

P
=

F
ul

l
D

ep
th

P
at

ch
in

g;
F

D
R

=
F

ul
l

D
ep

th
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n,

S
T

S
in

gl
e

T
re

at
;

F
S

F
og

S
ea

l;
P

av
e

R
es

ur
fa

ce
w

it
h

A
sh

ph
al

t;
C

S
C

ra
ck

S
ea

l

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_

P
ro

je
ct

s/
T

o
w

n
s&

C
it

ie
s/

O
th

er

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

S
co

pe
A

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
ed

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
S

pe
nt

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
is

tr
ic

t
5

P
av

in
g

P
la

n

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

[

P
ro

je
ct

S
co

pe
A

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
ed

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
S

pe
nt

T
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

m
ov

ed
to

ac
co

un
t

00
0

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

o
f

ou
r

kn
ow

le
dg

e,

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
as

o
f

A
pr

il
30

th
,

20
21

P
re

pa
re

d
B

y:
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

R
oa

ds
an

d
B

ri
dg

es
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

D
at

e
M

ay
3,

20
21

C
er

ti
fi

ed
B

y:
N

ei
l

C
ar

ne
y

N
ei

l
C

am
ey

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

D
at

e

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_



D
is

tr
ic

t
6

Pa
vi

ng
R

ep
or

t
T

hr
ou

gh
A

pr
il

30
th

,
20

21

FY
I8

-1
9

B
ud

ge
t

in
cl

ud
es

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d
fr

om
FY

I7
-1

8
B

ud
ge

t
$0

.0
0

C
om

m
itt

ed
$0

.0
0

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$0
.0

0

FD
P

=
Fu

ll
D

ep
th

Pa
tc

hi
ng

;
FD

R
=

Fu
ll

D
ep

th
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n,

ST
—

Si
ng

le
T

re
at

;
FS

=
Fo

g
Se

al
;

P
av

e
=

R
es

ur
fa

ce
w

ith
A

sh
ph

al
t;

C
S

=
C

ra
ck

Se
al

P
ro

je
ct

s/
T

ow
ns

&
C

it
ie

s/
O

th
er

A
pp

ro
va

l
D

at
e

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sc
op

e
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d

A
m

ou
nt

T
ot

al
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sp

en
tT

o-
D

at
e

C
om

pl
et

io
n

D
at

e

T
ot

al
s:

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
is

tr
ic

t6
P

av
in

g
P

la
n

A
pp

ro
va

lD
at

e
Pr

oj
ec

t
Sc

op
e

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

d
A

m
ou

nt
T

ot
al

Pr
oj

ec
t

Sp
en

tT
o-

D
at

e
C

om
pl

et
io

n
D

at
e

A
ll

m
on

ie
s

m
ov

’d
to

ac
co

un
t0

00

T
ot

al
s

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

W
e

ce
rt

if
y

th
at

th
e

ab
ov

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
to

th
e

be
st

of
ou

r
kn

ow
le

dg
e,

is
up

-t
o-

da
te

an
d

is
ac

cu
ra

te
in

fo
nn

at
io

n
as

of
A

pr
il

30
th

,
20

21
Pr

ep
ar

ed
B

y:
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

R
oa

ds
an

d
B

ri
dg

es
A

m
y

M
er

ri
tt

D
at

e
M

ay
3,

20
21

C
er

tif
ie

d
B

y:
N

ei
l

C
ar

ne
y

N
ei

l
C

ar
ne

y

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

D
at

e
6

i’
z
i



D
is

tr
ic

t
7

P
av

in
g

R
ep

or
t

T
h
ro

u
g
h

A
p
ri

l
3

0
th

,
2
0
2
1

F
Y

I8
-1

9
B

u
d
g
e
t

in
c
lu

d
e
s

C
a
rr

y
fo

rw
a
rd

fr
o
m

F
Y

1
7

-1
8

B
u
d
g
e
t

$4
7,

66
5.

07

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
$4

7,
66

5.
07

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

$0
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
:

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

W
e

c
e
rt

if
y

th
a
t

th
e

a
b
o
v
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

,
to

th
e

b
e
st

o
f

o
u
r

k
n

o
w

le
d
g
e
,

is
u
p

-t
o

-d
a
te

an
d

is
a
c
c
u

ra
te

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

as
o
f

A
p

ri
l

3
0
th

,
2
0
2
1

P
re

p
a
re

d
B

y
:

A
m

y
M

e
rr

it
t

R
o
a
d
s

an
d

B
ri

d
g
e
s

D
a
te

N
e
il

C
a
rn

e
y

A
m

y
M

er
ri

tt

M
ay

3,
20

21

1
L

ll
iA

ii
L

/

F
D

P
=

F
u

ll
D

e
p

th
P

a
tc

h
in

g
.

F
D

R
=

F
u
ll

D
e
p

th
R

e
c
la

m
a
ti

o
n
,

S
T

=
S

in
g

le
T

re
a
t;

F
S

F
o

g
S

e
a
l;

P
av

e
—

R
e
su

rf
a
c
e

w
it

h
A

sh
p
h
a
lt

;
C

S
=

C
ra

c
k

S
e
a
l

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

P
ro

je
ct

s/
T

ow
ns

&
C

it
ie

s/
O

th
er

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

D
a
te

P
ro

je
c
t

S
c
o
p
e

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

d
A

m
o
u
n
t

T
o

ta
l

P
ro

je
c
t

S
p
e
n
t

T
o
-D

a
te

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

D
a
te

7/
7/

20
15

T
o
w

n
o
fH

o
n
e
a

P
a
th

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$

4
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$
4
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
7

1
0
/1

9
/2

0
6

T
o
w

n
o
fH

o
n
e
a

P
a
th

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$
4
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$2

5,
62

7.
46

in
c
o
m

p
le

te

1
1
/1

8
/2

0
1
4

T
o
w

n
o
fP

e
lz

e
r

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
2
,8

1
2
.5

5
in

c
o
m

p
le

te

7
/7

/2
0

1
5

T
o
w

n
o
fP

e
lz

e
r

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
0
.0

0
in

c
o
m

p
le

te

1
0
/1

9
/2

0
1
6

T
o
w

n
o
fP

e
lz

e
r

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
in

c
o
m

p
le

te

T
o
w

n
o
fW

e
s
t

P
e
lz

e
r

G
ra

d
in

g
/d

ra
in

a
g

e
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

1
0
/1

9
/2

0
1

6
T

o
w

n
o
f

W
il

li
a
m

st
o

n
G

ra
d

in
g

/d
ra

in
a
g

e
$

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$
2
4
,5

7
9
.5

1
in

c
o
m

p
le

te

T
ot

al
s:

$1
72

,5
00

.0
0

$1
01

,0
19

.5
2

D
is

tr
ic

t
7

P
av

in
g

P
la

n

A
p

p
ro

v
a
l

D
a
te

P
ro

je
c
t

S
c
o
p
e

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

d
A

m
o
u
n
t

T
o

ta
l

P
ro

je
c
t

S
p
e
n
t

T
o
-D

a
te

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

D
a
te

A
ll

m
o

n
ie

s
m

o
v

e
d

to
a
c
c
o

u
n

t
00

0

D
a
te

V


























	_Working Agenda
	02aSP Wayne Rogers Resolution
	02bSP National Safe Boating Week
	06a Ordinance 2021-026 DM-#6648238-v6-FILOT_Ordinance_-_Project_Greenlight
	07a Ordinance 2021-030 Budget Ordinance FY 22 2nd Reading
	07b Ordinance 2021-031 Private Road Standards 38-353(d)
	10a Bid 21-052 ACTC 120 Resurfacing
	11 Finance Committee Agenda 5142021
	14a Building-Codes-Report
	14b Special Projects
	14c Paving
	14d Transfers



